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PARTI
Item 1. Business

This annual report contains forward-looking statements, These statements relate to future events or our future financial
performance. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terminology such as “may” , “should” ,

"expects” , "plans’ , “anticipates” , "believes” , "estimates” , “predicts" , “"potential’ or “continue” or the negative
of these terms or other comparable terminology. These statements are only predictions and involve known and unknown risks,
uncertainties and ather factors, including the risks in the section entitled  “Risk Factors” , that may cause our or our industry’ s
actual results, levels of activity, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results, levels of activity,
performance or achievements expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements.

Although we believe that the expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot guarantee
future results, levels of activity, performance or achievements. Except as required by applicable law, including the securities laws
of the United States, we do not intend to update any of the forward-looking statements to conform these statements to actual
results.

Our financial statements are stated in United States Dollars (US$) and are prepared in accordance with United States Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles.

In this annual report, unless otherwise specified, all dollar amounts are expressed in United States dollars and all references to
“common shares” refer to the common shares in our capital stock.

As used in this current report and unless otherwise indicated, the terms "we", "us” and "our" mean TransAKT Ltd., a Nevada
corporation, and our wholly owned subsidiary, TransAKT Bio Agritech Ltd.in Hong Kong (S.A.R), unless otherwise indicated.

General Overview

Our company was incorporated in the Province of British Columbia on December 10, 1996 as Green Point Resources Inc. On
October 18, 2000, we changed our name to Wildcard Wireless Solutions Inc. On June 30, 2001, we filed Articles of Continuance
in the Province of Alberta and became an Alberta corporation. On that same day, we conducted an amalgamation with
Wildcard Communications Canada Inc, an Alberta corporation, our wholly-owned subsidiary, wherein Wildcard
Communications Canada was merged into Wildcard Wireless Solutions Inc. On June 20, 2003, we changed our name to
TransAKT Corp. We chd our name from TransAKT Corp. to TransAKT Ltd. on July 12, 2006, Effective December 2, 2011, following
approval by our shareholders on November 17, 2011, we re-domesticated our company from the Province of Alberta, Canada
and became a Nevada corporation.

We have operated principally as a research and development company since our inception. Initial seed capital has been
directed toward areas of product research and development, patent filings and administration. We initially focused on the
research, design, development and manufacturing of mobile payment terminals. However, the sale of these payment terminals
reached its end-of-%ife due to changes in cellular phone regulations and limited acceptance in the marketplace.

In October 2004, we purchased the existing business and certain assets of IP Mental Inc,, 2 Taiwan-based Voice over Internet
Protocol { "VoIP* Y hardware and software provider. On November 15, 2006, we acquired Taiwan Halee International Co, Ltd.
( "HTT" 3, a Taiwan-based leading designer, manufacturer and distributor of telecommunications equipment, including
specialized VolP-compatible phone systems. These acquisitions were intended to enable us to remain competitive in the
marketplace by engaging in the design, development, manufacturing and sale of telecommunications equipment, including
VolP compatible telephone systems and multi-line cordtess telephone systems.




On November 15, 2006, we acquired HTT, for the sum of USD$5,000,000. The purchase price was paid by the delivery to the
sharehalders of HTT of: (i) USD$200,000 in cash; (i} USD$300,000 in a promissory note from us due in cash six months after
closing; (iif) 50,000,000 of our common voting shares, with a deemed value of USD$0.09 per share; and (iv) 5,000,000 of our
comman voting shares issued to our president and chief executive officer, Mr. James Wu, as performance-based compensation.
We have mainly financed our operations through the use of debt and the issuance of equity in private placements. In October
2006, we repaid a loan that we had taken against inventory produced to fund our first commercial run of our payment
terminals. We settled the loan for USD$90,000 using funds raised from the private placement of our shares. We continue to
finance our operations through debt or equity financing and intend to do so until our sales are sufficient to fund our
operations,

On August 12, 2010, we fited a Form S-4 Registration Staternent in connection with the continuation of our company from
Alberta to Nevada. We registered 102,645,120 shares of common stock of TransAKT Ltd. {Nevada} which were issued to the
shareholders of TransAKT Ltd. (Alberta) on a one-for-one basis to the number of shares held by them.

Effective June 25, 2012, the Nevada Secretary of State accepted for filing of a certificate of amendment, wherein, we amended
our articles of incorporation to increase the authorized number of shares of our common stock from 300,000,000 to
700,000,000 shares of comman stock, par vaiue of $0.001 per share. Our preferred stock remains unchanged.

On May 3, 2012, we entered into an Asset Purchase and Sale Agreement with Vegfab Agricultural Technology Ca. Ltd,
( "Vegfab” ), a Taiwanese corporation, pursuant to which we intended to acquire the material assets of Vegfab. Vegfab is in the
business of manufacturing innovative indoor agricultural equipment used to grow a large variety of vegetables and fruit using
simulated sunlight from LED lamps in a proprietary hydroponic system. Vegfab' s product line includes systems for commercial
praduction and a home growing system which allows families to grow safe and clean fruit and vegetables in their own homes.
Prior to completion of the transaction we and Vegfab elected instead to proceed by way of a share purchase and, effective July
16, 2012, we acguired all outstanding securities of Vegfab, In consideration of the Vegfab securities, we had paid $1,000,000 in
cash and issued 150,000,000 shares of our common stock to the sharehoiders of Vegfab which constituted approximately
37.2% of our commen stock at the time of closing. As a result of the transaction Vegfab became our wholly owned subsidiary
and primary business unit, Vegfab has since become engaged in the operation of a plant factory in Taiwan for the production of
pesticide-free vegetables.

Previously, we entered into a performance compensation agreement dated June 15, 2006 with James Wu, our president and
chief executive officer, pursuant to which our company was required to pay Mr. Wu share compensation of 10% of the value of
any venture acquisition that Mr. Wu secured for our company. As a result, in July 2012, we issued to Mr, Wu 18,333,333 shares
of our company’ s common stock with respect to the acquisition of Vegfab,

On January 4, 2013, we entered into a share purchase and sale agreement with Mr. Pan Yen Chu pursuant to which we sold to
Mr. Pan 100% of all issued and outstanding securities in our wholly owned subsidiary HTT. In consideration of the sale of HTT,
Mr. Pan has transferred to our company 45,000,000 previously issued common voting shares of our company with a deemed
value of $0.04 per share or $1.8 million in the aggregate. The transfer of common shares was completed on January 7, 2013, In
connection with the sale HTT, the 45,000,000 common shares of our company received as consideration will be returned to
treasury. The 45,000,000 shares constitute approximately 11.5% of our company’ s currently issued and outstanding common
stock.

On Qctober 30, 2013, Million Talented Ltd., a related party 50% owned by the Company’ s president and directar, contributed
$516 {equals to HKD 4,000} to obtain 40% cwnership of TransAKT Bio Agritech Ltd., formerly named as TransAKT (H.K} Ltd,,
{ "TransAKT H.K.” ). TransAKT H.K. was incorporated in Hong Kong on November 20, 2007. It had no operation until 2013,
TransAKT H.K's primary business is conducting research and development on new agricultural technology relating to the
Company’ s business, On May 6, 2015, the Company acquired the remaining 40% of the TransAKT H.K. from Million Talented
Ltd. As such, The Company wholly owned its subsidiary of TransAKT BIO Agritech Ltd. And it becomes our primary business unit.
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On June 30, 2015, our wholly owned subsidiary, TransAKT Taiwan Ltd, entered inte a Share Transfer Agreement among Vegfab
Agricultural Technology Co. Ltd. and a third party pursuant to which the third party acquired 100% of of Vegfab Agricultural
Technology Co, Ltd. in consideration of $100,000. Vegfab Agricultural Technology Co, Ltd. was the sole material asset of
TransAKT Taiwan Ltd. and its parent company {and subsidiary of the Company), TransAKT Holdings Ltd,, a Turks and Caicos
company. Subsequent to the sale of Vegfab Agricultural Technology Co. Ltd., pursuant to a Share Purchase Agreement dated
June 30, 2015 with the Company' s former President, Chief Executive Officer and Director, the Company sold TransAKT
Holdings Ltd. (and its subsidiary, TransAKT Taiwan Ltd.} to the former (non-affiliated) officer and director in consideration of
$100,000. All intercompany debts between TransAKT Holdings Lid. and the formerly affiliated companies were cancelled as a
result of the transaction.

A 20 to 1 reversed stack split was approved by the Board of Directors on November 9, 2015, by majority of shareholders on
April 1, 2016, by FINRA on June 20, 2016 and effective on June 23, 2016. The issued and outstanding common stock was
consolidated from 613,447,306 to 30,672,404 with fractional share round up to 1 share.

Overview of our Operations

We began operations in 1997 and commercialized our first product line of wireless point-of-sale ( “WPOS" ) terminals in April
2003. With the use of cellular phones, these terminals allow merchants to accept payments anywhere, anytime. However, our
WPOS terminals were discontinued due to changes in cellular phone regulations and limited acceptance in the marketplace. In
October 2004, through the acquisition of the business and certain assets of IP Mental Inc,, we entered the VolP business. On
November 15, 2006, we acquired Taiwan Halee International Co. Ltd. ( “HTT" }, a Taiwan-based leading designer, manufacturer
and distributor of telecommunications equipment, including specialized VolP-compatibie phane systems. These acquisitions
were intended to enable us to remain competitive in the VolP marketplace by engaging in the design, development,
manufacturing and sale of telecommunications equipment, including VolP compatible telephone systems and multi-line
cordless telephone systems.

Effective July 16, 2012, we acquired all outstanding securities of Vegfab Agricultural Technolegy Co. Lid. { “Vegfab” ), a
Taiwanese corporation, With the acquisition of Vegfab we entered the business of manufacturing agricultural equipment used
to grow a large variety of vegetables and fruit using simulated sunlight from LED lamps in a proprietary hydroponic system.
Vegfab® s product fine includes systems for commercial production and a home growing system which allows families to grow
safe and clean fruit and vegetables in their own homes. Vegfab subsequently became engaged in the operation of a plant
factory in Taiwan for the production of pesticide-free vegetables.

Concurrently with our acquisition of Vegfab, our management began planning our exit from the VolP telecommunications
business owing to diminishing growth apportunities for our Company in that industry. Subsequently, on January 4, 2013, we
entered into a share purchase and sale agreement with Mr. Pan Yen Chu pursuant to which we sold to Mr. Pan 100% of all
issued and outstanding securities in our wholly owned subsidiary HTT in consideration for the cancellation and return to
treasury of 45,000,000 previously issued common voting shares of our company with a deemed value of $0.04 per share or $1.8
million in the aggregate. The transfer of common shares was completed on January 7, 2013, On September 27, 2016, the
company cancelled these treasury stocks of 45,000,000 shares amounted to $1.8 million in the aggregate,

As a result of our sale of HTT, Vegfab Agricultural Technology Co. Ltd. became our primary business unit, However, due to
recurring losses from operations and in order to conserve operating rescurces, our management decided to sell the Vegfab on
June 30, 2015.

Subsequent to our sale of Vegfab, we continue to be engaged in the sale and distribution of indoor agricultural eguipment,
including lighting, irrigation and hydroponic growing systems. We purchase inventory from third party manufacturers and re-
sell equipment to various indoor agricultural operators located in Asia. Our primary markets are Taiwan, Hong Kong, Mainland
China, and Singapore.
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On July 15, 2016 we entered into Securities Purchase Agreement with our President, Chief Executive Officer and Director, Ho
Kang-Wing, pursuant to which we issued to Mr. Ho a Convertible Promissory Note (the "Note" ) in consideration of
$1,000,000 in cash proceeds. The Note bears interest at the rate of 8% per annum and may be prepaid in whole or in part
without penalty before the maturity date of July 14, 2018. At the option of the Holder, the cutstanding principal and accrued
interest underlying Note may be converted from time, on or following the maturity date, into common shares of our Company
at the price of $0.01 per share.

On February 28, 2017, Mr. Ho Kang-wing (the holder of convertible promissory note) elected to convert the entire outstanding
amount of the Note into 105,066,666 common shares of the Company including the accumulated interest. Therefore, the issued
and outstanding common shares of the Company were increased to 133,506,570 shares at that date.

We have operating losses of $208,310 and $220,940 during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and
incurred an accumulated deficit of $22,558,836 and $22,350,526 as of December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively.
in addition, we expect to incur an operating loss in 2019.

Principal Products and Markets

In the recent years, we supplied indoor agricultural equipment to commercial products of fruits and vegetables. However, the
innovation in the indoor agriculture market is primarily focus on combining different technologies in new ways. Our industry is
undergoing a pericd of rapid innovation and growth. And there exists a vast number of companies which predate our company
and which have greater financial resources and experience in the industry. Furthermore, we are undergoing a very long period
of consumer education in the industry. It is a high consumption of resources and the public acceptance of the business modet is
limited. At this moment, we have not realized commercial success of the technologies. Therefore, we have to seek for other
development opportunities for our company.

As at the date of this annual report, we are actively seeking opportunities to diversify our business and to enhance shareholder
value. In particular, we are investigating potential opportunities to enter the Chinese health food market, with an emphasis on
traditional Chinese herbs known as cordyceps. In that regard, we have recently identified and are in negotiations with a
potential joint-venture partner engaged in research, manufacture, processing and sales of cordyceps. Importantly, however,
there is no guarantee that our negotiations will be successful or that we will successfully identify or secure other opportunities
to diversify our business.

Subsidiaries

We have one wholly owned subsidiary, TransAKT (BVI) Ltd. Which holds 100% of the issued and outstanding shares of TransAKT
Bio Agritech Ltd., its primary business is conducting research and development on new agricultural technology and marketing
the products for the Company. Other than holding the shares of TransAKT Bio Agritech Ltd., TransAKT (BVI) Ltd. is non-active.

ltem 1A, Risk Factors
Risks Relating to our Company
We have a history of operating losses which may affect our ability to continue operations.

We sustained operating loss for each of the fiscal years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 of $208,310 and $220,940,
respectively. We also anticipate sustaining a loss from operations for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2019. If we are unable
to achieve profitability or to raise sufficient capital to carry out our business plan, we may not be abie to continue operations,
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We have a limited operating history and are still proving the viability of our current products and business modef and thus, we
may be unable to sustain operations and you may lose your entire investment.

During fiscal 2012, we abandoned our VWAP and VolP product lines and adopted the business of our subsidiary, Vegfab
Agricultural Technology Co. Ltd., which began operations in 2010. If we are unable to prove our business model or the viability
of our products, we may not be able to sustain operations and our ability to raise additional funding may be jeopardized.

Our competition has greater resources than we do and can respond more quickly to changes in the industry which could
adversely affect our ability to compete.

The marketing and sale of indoor agricultural equipment is intensely competitive and involve a high degree of risk. Public
acceptance of business transacted by us may never reach the magnitude required to be commercially profitable.

Many of our existing corpetitors, as well as a number of potential new competitors have longer operating histories, greater
name recognition, larger customer bases and significantly greater financial, technical and marketing resources than us. These
factors may allow them to respond more quickly than us to new or emerging technologies and changes in customer
requirements. [t may also allow them to devote greater resources than we can to the development, promotion and sale of their
products and services, Such competitors may also engage in more extensive research and development, undertake more far-
reaching marketing campaigns, adopt more aggressive pricing policies and make more attractive offers to existing and
potential employees, strategic pariners, advertisers and internet publishers. In addition, current and potential competitors have
established or may establish cooperative relationships among themselves or with third parties to increase the ability of their
products or services.

Volatility of world economic factors may affect our ability to raise capital and product costs which may affect our ability to
continue operations.

Our revenues, profitability and future growth and the carrying value of assets are substantially dependent on prevailing world
economic conditions and fluctuations in influencing factors such as exchange rates, rates of inflation, governmental stabitity
and natural disasters. Our ability to borrow and to obtain additional capital on attractive terms is also substantially dependent
upon these factors, The negative impact of these factors on sales orders originating from an affected country would have an
adverse effect on our borrowing capacity, revenues, profitabitity and cash flows from operations. For example, unfavorable
changes in exchange rates can increase the cost of our products and reduce revenues resulting in reduced profitability. In the
event that our profitability is reduced and we are unable to maintain our profit margins, it may be difficult to raise capital and
reduce our borrowing ability. In addition, as has been recently experienced, general downturns in the technology sector
worldwide have made fundraising difficult. Since the marketing of our products will require us to raise capital, this may have an
adverse effect on our ability to continue operations and to effectively market our products.

We are dependent on key personnel who have extensive knowledge with respect to our product and business and thus, the loss
of one or more of these individuals may aclversely affect our business.

We are heavily dependent upon the expertise of our management and the loss of one or more of these individuals could have a
material adverse effect. We do not maintain key-person insurance policies on any of our executive officers. Since we are a
technology and equipment based company, our future success alsc depends on our ability to continue to attract, retain and
motivate highly skilled employees in the payments and communications and equipment manufacturing industry. Competition
for employees in our industry is intense. We may be unable to retain key employees or attract, assimilate or retain other highly
qualified employees in the future,




The audit report included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K was prepared by auditors who are not inspected by the Public
Accounting Oversight Board ( "PCACB” } and as a result our shareholders are deprived of the benefit of having PCAOB
inspections.

The independent registered pubtic accounting firm that issues the audit reports included in our annual reports filed with
the SEC, as auditors of companies that are traded publicly in the United States and a firm registered with the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States), or the "PCAOB" , is required by the laws of the United States o undergo regular
inspections by the PCAOB to assess its compliance with the laws of the United States and professional standards. Because our
auditors are located in Hong Kong SAR, a jurisdiction where the PCAOSB is currently unable to conrduct inspections without the
approval of the Hong Kong authorities, our auditors are not currently inspected by the PCAOB.

Inspections of other firms that the PCAOB has conducted outside Hong Kong SAR have identified deficiencies in those
firms' audit procedures and quality control procedures, which may be addressed as part of the inspection process to improve
future audit quality, The inability of the PCAOB to conduct inspections in Hong Kong SAR prevents the PCAQOB from regularly
evaluating our auditor's statements, audits and quality control procedures. As a result, investors may be deprived of the
benefits of PCAOB inspections.

The inability of the PCAOB to conduct inspections of auditors in Hong Kong SAR makes it more difficult to evaluate the
effectiveness of our auditor's quality control and audit procedures as compared to auditors outside of Hong Kong SAR that are
subject to PCAOB inspections. Investors may lose confidence in our reported financial information and procedures and the
quality of our financial statements.

We may be exposed to risks relating to management’ s conclusion that our disclosure controls and procedures and internal
controls over financial reporting are ineffective.

We do not have an independent audit committee and our Board of Directors may be unable to fulfill the functions of
such a committee, which may compromise the management of our business. Our Board of Directors functions as our audit
committee and is comprised of four directors, none of whom are considered to be "independent” in accordance with the
requirements of Rule 10A-3 under the Exchange Act. An independent audit committee plays a crucial role in the corporate
governance process, assessment of the Company's processes relating to its risks and control environment, oversight of financial
reporting, and evaluation of internal and independent audit processes. The lack of an independent audit committee may
prevent the Company Board of Directors from being independent in its judgments and decisions and its ability to pursue the
committee's responsibilities, which could compromise the management of our business,

We wifl need additional funds in order to implement our intended projects and there is no assurance that such funds will be
avaifable as, if and when needed which may adversely affect our operations.

Cash flow used in operating activities of our continuing operations for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 were
$208,542 and $198,122, respectively. We have been dependent upon the proceeds of equity and non-equity financing to fund
operations, No assurances can be given that our actual cash requirements will not exceed our budget or that anticipated
revenues will be realized when needed, lines of credit will be available if necessary or that additional capital will be available.

Failure to obtain such additional funds on terms and conditions that we deem acceptable may materially and adversely affect
our ability to effectively manufacture, market and distribute our products resulting in decreased revenues which may also result
in a decreased share price.

Prices for raw materials required for our products are volatile. If there is a significant increase in prices of raw materials our
ability to generate revenue and achieve profitability may suffer.

All raw materials for our products are sourced from China and Taiwan. Due to the fact that many of our products use computer
components, the price of these components can be highly volatile and are subject to the risk of obsolescence. In order to
control costs and the risk of obsolescence, we contract with a manufacturer at a set price for the building of our product over a
number of terminals. Despite these efforts, there can be no assurance that we will be able to keep prices of raw materials at a
cost effective level for our operations, If there is a significant increase in raw materials our ability to generate revenue and
achieve profitability may suffer,




Risks Relating to OQur Stock

The market price of our common shares has been and will in all likelihood continue to be volatile which may adversely affect the
value of your investment.

The market price of our common shares has fluctuated over a wide range and it is likely that the price of our common stock will
continue to fluctuate in the future, Announcements regarding acquisitions, the status of corporate collaborations, regulatory
approvals or other developments by us or our competitors could have a significant impact on the market price of our common
shares.

Our shares currently trade on the OTC Markets OTCQB ( "OTCQB" ) with limited trading. If this market is not sustained or we
are unable to satisfy any future trading criteria that may be imposed by the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority { “FINRA" },
there may not be any liquidity for our shares. We have generated only limited revenue from the sale of our products to date.
These factors could have a negative impact on the liquidity of any investment made in our stock.

The value and transferability of our shares may be adversely impacted by the penny stock rufes.

In addition, holders of our common stock in the United States may experience substantial difficulty in selling their securities as a
result of the “penny stock rules” Our common stock is covered by the penny stock rules, a Securities and Exchange
Commission { “SEC” ) rule that imposes additional sales practice requirements on broker-dealers who sell such securities to
persons other than established customers and accredited investors, generally institutions with assets in excess of $5,000,000 or
individuals with net worth in excess of $1,000,000 or annual income exceeding $200,0600 or $300,000 jointly with their spouse.
For transactions covered by the rule, the broker-dealer must make a special suitability determination for the purchaser and
transaction prior to the sale. Consequently, the rule may affect the ability of broker-dealers to sell our securities and also may
affect the ability of purchasers of our stock to seil their shares in the secendary market. It may also cause fewer broker-deaters
to make a market in our stock.

The large nurnber of shares eligible for future sale by existing shareholders may adversely affect the market price for our
comimon shares.

Future sales of substantial amounts of our common shares in the public market, or the perception that such sales could occur,
could adversely affect the market price of our common shares, At April 1, 2019, we had 133,506,570 common shares
outstanding. On that date, we had no common shares reserved for issuance under our stock option plan; and no common
shares reserved for issuance under the warrants issued pursuant to various private placernents.

No prediction can be made as to the effect, if any, that sales of shares of our common stock or the availability of such shares for
sale will have on the market prices of our common stock.

We have limited sales of prodlcts to date and no assurance can be given that our products will be widely accepted in the
marketplace which may adversely affect your investment,

Our future sales, and therefore, cash flow and income, and our success, are highly dependent on success in marketing our
products and consumer acceptance of those products. If our products are not widely accepted or we are unable to market our
products effectively, we may face reduced share prices, decreased profitability, and decreased cash flow.

There is a limited public market for our common shares at this time in the United States which may affect your abifity to self our
stock.




Our shares currently trade on the OTCQB with limited trading. If this market is not sustained or we are unable to satisfy any
future trading criteria that may be imposed by FINRA, there may not be any liquidity for our shares. We have generated only
iimited revenue from the sale of our products to date. These factors could have a negative impact on the liquidity of any
investment made in our stock.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
Asa “"smaller reporting company” |, we are not required to provide the information required by this item,
ltem 2, Properties

Our principal executive office is located at Unit 8, 3/F. Wah Yiu Industrial Centre, 30-32 Au Pui Wan Street, Fotan, N.T. Hong
Kong. This office is provided by our officer and is free of charge.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We know of no material, existing or pending legat proceedings against us, nor are we involved as a plaintiff in any material
proceeding or pending litigation. There are no proceedings in which any of our directors, officers or affiliates, or any registered
or beneficial shareholder, is an advarse party or has a material interest adverse to our company.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.
PART I

ltem 5. - Market for Registrant’ s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities

Previously, our stock traded on the TSX Venture Exchange ( "TSX-V" } which trading began on October 18, 2000, We
voluntarily de-listed from the TSX-V on September 17, 2004. Qur common stock began quotation on the OTC Bulletin Board on
May 20, 2004 under the trading symhol “TAKDF” |, On February 22, 2011 quotation of our common stock was moved to OTC
Bulletin Board under the trading symbol TAKD. Our stock currently trades on the OTCQB electronic quotation service operated
by OTC Markets Group, which is the successor of the OTC Bulletin Board. Trading in stocks quoted on the OTCQB is often thin
and is characterized by wide fluctuations in trading prices due to many factors that may have little to do with a company's
operations or business prospects. We cannot assure you that there will be a market for our common stock in the future.

OTCQB securities are not listed or traded on the floor of an organized national or regional stock exchange. Instead, OTCQB
securities transactions are conducted through a telephone and computer network connecting dealers in stocks, OTCQB issuers
are traditionalty smaller companies that do not meet the financial and other listing requirements of a regional or national stock
exchange.

The following quotations, obtained from OTC Markets Group, reflect the high and low bids for our comman shares based on
inter-dealer prices, without retail mark-up, mark-down or commission and may not represent actual transactions.

The fallowing table shows the high and jow bid quotations for our common stock for each fiscal quarter during our two mest
recently completed fiscal years, These quotations are based on inter-dealer prices, without retaii mark-up, mark-down or
commission, and may not represent actual transactions.




OTC Markets Group Inc, OTCQB)

Quarter Ended High Low
December 31, 2018 0.035 0.02
September 30, 2018 0.04365 0.015

June 30, 2018 0.16 0.035

March 31, 2018 0.07 0.04
December 31, 2017 $0.082 $0.06
September 30, 2017 $0.14 $0.06

June 30, 2017 $0.143 $0.07

March 31, 2017 $0.2113 $0.022
December 31, 2016 $0.24 $0.01

(1) Over-the-counter market quotations reflect inter-dealer prices without retail mark-up, mark-down or
commission, and may not represent actual transactions.

Our common shares are issued in registered form. Transfer Online, Inc,, 512 SE Salmaon St, Portland, OR 97214 (Telephone:
(503) 227-2950) is the registrar and transfer agent for our common shares.

On April 1, 2019, the shareholders' list showed 136 registered shareholders and 133,506,570 common shares outstanding.
Dividend Policy

We have not paid any cash dividends on our common stock and have no present intention of paying any dividends on the
shares of our common stock, Qur current policy is to retain earnings, if any, for use in our operations and in the development of
our business. Our future dividend palicy will be determined from time to time by our board of directors.

Equity Compensation Plan Information
We have not approved or adopted any equity compensation plans.
Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities; Use of Proceeds from Registered Securities

We did not sell any equity securities which were not registered under the Securities Act during the year ended December 31,
2018 that were not otherwise disclosed on our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q or our current reports on Form 8-K filed during
the year ended Decerber 31, 2018.

Purchase of Equity Securities by the 1ssuer and Affiliated Purchasers

We did not purchase any of our shares of common stock or other securities during our fourth quarter of our fiscal year ended
December 31, 2018.

ftem 6. Selected Financial Data

Asa “smalter reporting company” , we are not required to provide the information required by this Item.




item 7, Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our audited consolidated financial statements and the related
notes for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 that appear elsewhere in this annuai report. The following discussion
contains forward-looking statements that reflect our plans, estimates and beliefs. Our actual results could differ materially from
those discussed in the forward looking statements. Factors that could cause or contribute to such differences include, but are
not limited to those discussed below and elsewhere in this annual report, particularty in the section entitled "Risk Factors"
beginning on page 7 of this annual report,

Our audited consolidated financial statements are stated in United States Dollars and are prepared in accordance with United
States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

Operating Results

There was no sales revenue for the period of last twelve months.




Results of Operation for the Years Ended December 31, 2018 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Results of Operation

Our operating results for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 are summarized as follows:

Sales, net

Cost of sales

Gross Profit/(Loss)

Selling, general and administrative expenses
Loss from operations

Total Other income (expenses)

Provision for income taxes expense (benefit)

Net loss

Net loss attributable to non-controlling interest

Net loss attributable to TRANSAKT LTD.

Revenues & Cost of Sales

There was no sales revenue for the year ended December 31, 2018 and 2017,

Cost of sales was zero for the year ended December 31, 2018 since the zero sales in 2018,

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Year Ended
December 31, December 31,
2018 2017
$ - -
S - -
S - -
$ (208,089) (207,796)
$ (208,089) {207,796)
$ (221) (13,144)
$ - -
$ {208,310} (220,940}
4 - .
$ {208,310) (220,940}

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2018 totaled $208,089 compared o aperating

expenses of $207,796 during the year ended December 31, 2017. Almost same as last year.

Loss from Operations

Loss from operations for the year ended December 31, 2018 totaled $208,089 compared to $207,796 from the same period in

2017. Almost same as last year,

Other Income (expenses)

Cther (expense) / income decrease approximately $(12,923) to $(221) for the year ended December 31, 2018 from ($13,144) for
the same period in 2017, The decrease in net other expense was primarily due to the decrease in interest expense on

convertible note.




Net loss

As a result of the above factors, we have net loss attributable to the Company’ s common stockholders of approximately
$208,310 for the year ended December 31, 2018 as compared to a loss of $220,940 for the year ended December 31, 2017,
representing a decrease of approximately $12,630.

Liquidity
Working Capital
At At
December 31, December 31,
2018 2017

Current assets 4 239,088 § 445,630
Current liabilities $ 37,287 % 35,656
Working capital $ 201,801 % 409,974
Cash Flows

Fiscal year ended December 31,

2018 2017
Net cash used in operating activities $ 208679 % 198,122
Net cash used in investing activities 3 - % -
Net cash provided by financing activities $ - % -

Net cash flow used in operating activities was $208,679 in 2018, compared to $198,122 in 2017, an increase of $10,557. The
increase in net cash flow used in operating activities was mainly due to higher operation cost.

There is no net cash flow used in investing activities for 2018 and 2017.
There is no net cash flow provided by financing activities for 2018 and 2017,
Qur working capital was $201,801 as of December 31, 2018 compared to $409,974 as of Decernber 31, 2017.

in management’ s opinion, our working capital is not currently sufficient for our present requirements. However, we will
continue to evaluate aiternative sources of capital to meet our growth requirements, including other asset or debt financing,
issuing equity securities and entering into other financing arrangements. There can be no assurance, however, that any of the
contemplated financing arrangements described herein will be available and, if available, can be obtained on terms favorable to
Ls.

Historically, operations and short-term financing have been sufficient to meet our cash needs, We believe that we will be raise
capital through private placement offerings of our equity securities to provide the necessary cash flow to meet anticipated
working capital requirements. However, our actual working capital needs for the long and short -term will depend upon
numerous factors, including operating results, competition, and the availability of credit facilities, none of which can be
predicted with certainty. Future expansion will be fimited by the availability of financing products and raising capital.




Capital Expenditure
Total capital expenditures were $0 for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
Currency Exchange Fluctuations

The Company financial statements are presented in the U.S. dollar {$}, which is the Company’ s reporting currency, while its
functional currency is Hong Kong Dollar {HKD). Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional
currency rate ruling at the date of transaction. Any differences between the initially recorded amount and the settlement
amount are recorded as a gain or loss on foreign currency transaction in the consolidated statements of income. Monetary
assets and liabilities dencminated in foreign currency are translated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet date. Any differences are taken to profit or loss as a gain or loss on foreign currency transtation in the statements
of income,

in accordance with ASC 830, Foreign Currency Matters, the Company translates the assets and liabilities into U.S. dollar {$} using
the rate of exchange prevaiting at the balance sheet date and the statements of operations and cash flows are translated at an
average rate during the reporting period. Adjustments resulting from the translation from HKD into U.S. dollar are recorded in
stockhoiders' equity as part of accumulated other comprehensive income.

Cash Requirements

We used cash in operations of $208,679 for the year ended December 31, 2018. We continue to be dependent on the proceeds
of equity and non-equity financing to fund our operations. No assurances can be given that our actual cash requirements wil
fall within our budget that anticipated revenues will be realized when needed, that lines of credit will be available to us if
reguired, or that additional capital will be available to us.

Research and Development
Ne research and development expenses were incurred in 2018 or 2017,
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect on our financial
condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital
resources that are material to stockholders.

Critical Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of TransAKT (BVI) Limited and its wholly owned subsidiaries,
TransAKT Bio Agritech Ltd., collectively referred to within as the Company. All material intercompany accounts, transactions,
and profits have been eliminated in consolidation.

Going Concern

We has incurred a net loss attributable to the Company’ s common stockhoiders of $208,310 and $220,940 during the years
ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and has an accumulated deficit of $22,558,836 and 322,350,526 as of
December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively.

The accompanying consolidated financial staternents have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going
concern. This basis of accounting contemplates the recovery of the Company’ s assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the
normal course of business. This presentation presumes funds wili be available to finance ongoing research and development,
operations and capital expenditures and permit the realization of assets and the payment of liabilities in the normal course of
operations for the foreseeable future.




The abifity of the Company to continue research and development projects and realize the capitalized value of proprietary
technologies and related assets is dependent upon future commercial success of the technologies and raising sufficient funds
to continue research and development as well as to effectively market its products. Tarough December 31, 2018, the Company
has not realized commercial success of the technologies, nor have they raised sufficient funds o continue research and
development or to market its products,

There can be no assurances that there will be adequate financing available to the Company and the consolidated financial
statements do not include any adjustments to reflect the possible future effects on the recoverability and classification of assets
or the amounts and classification of liabilities that may result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

The Company has taken certain restructuring steps to provide the necessary capital to continue its operatians. These steps
included: (1) Tightly budgeting and controlling ali expenses; {2) The Company plans to continue actively seeking additional
funding opportunities to improve and expand upon our preduct lines.

{/se of Fstimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States
{ "GAAP" ) requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates,

Revenue Recognition

Revenues are recognized when finished products are shipped to customers and both title and the risks and rewards of
ownership are transferred and collectability is reasonably assured. The Company’ s revenues are recorded upon confirmed
acceptance after inspection by the customers of the Company.

Exchange Gain (Loss)

During the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the transactions of TransAKT Bio Agritech Ltd. were denominated in
foreign currency and were recorded in Hong Kong Dollar (HKD) at the rates of exchange in effect when the transactions occur,
Exchange gains and losses are recognized for the different foreign exchange rates applied when the foreign currency assets and
lizhilities are settled.

Transiation Adiustment

The Company financial statements are presented in the U.S. dollar {$), which is the Company’ s reporting currency, while its
functional currency is Hong Kong Dollar (HKD). Transactions in foreign currencies are initialy recorded at the functional
currency rate ruling at the date of transaction. Any differences between the initially recorded amount and the settlement
amount are recorded as a gain or loss on foreign currency transaction in the consolidated statements of income. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet date. Any differences are taken to profit or loss as a gain cor less on foreign currency translation in the statements
of income.

In accordance with ASC 830, Foreign Currency Matters, the Company translates the assets and liabilities into U.S. dollar ($) using
the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date and the statements of operations and cash flows are translated at an
average rate during the reporting period. Adjustments resulting from the translation from HKD into U.S. dollar are recorded in
stockhoiders’ equity as part of accumulated other comprehensive income,

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income includes accumulated foreign currency translation gains and losses. The Company has reported the
components of comprehensive income on its statements of stockholders’  equity.




Advertising

Advertising expenses consist primarily of costs of promotion for corporate image and product marketing and costs of direct
advertising. The Company expenses all advertising costs as incurred,

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with ASC 740, income Taxes, which requires that the Company
recognize deferred tax liabilities and assets based on the differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and the
tax basis of assets and liabilities, using enacted tax rates in effect in the years the differences are expected to reverse. Deferred
income tax benefit {expense} results from the change in net deferred tax assets or deferred tax liabilities. A valuation allowance
is recorded when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that some or all of any deferred tax assets will not be
realized.

Statement of Cash Flows

Cash flows from the Company's operations are based upon the local currencies. As a result, amounts related to assets and
liabilities reported on the statement of cash flows will not necessarily agree with changes in the corresponding balances on the
balance sheet.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk are accounts receivable and other
receivables arising from its normal business activities. The Company has a diversified customer base. The Company controls
credit risk related to accounts receivable through credit approvais, credit limits and monitoring procedures. The Company
routinely assesses the financial strength of its customers and, based upon factors surrounding the credit risk, establishes an
allowance, if required, for un-collectible accounts and, as a consequence, believes that its accounts receivable credit risk
exposure beyond such allowance is limited.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and cash in time deposits, certificates of deposit and all highly liquid debt
instruments with original maturities of three months or less.

Fair Value of Financial nstruments

In the first quarter of fiscal year 2008, the Company adaopted Accounting Standards Codification subtopic 820-10, Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures ( "ASC 820-10" ). ASC 820-10 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair
value, and enhances fair value measurement disclosure. ASC 820-10 delays, until the first quarter of fiscal year 2009, the
effective date for ASC 820-10 for all non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities, except those that are recognized or
disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis (at least annually). The adoption of ASC 820-10 did not
have a material impact on the Company” s financial position or operations.

Effective October 1, 2008, the Company adopted Accounting Standards Codification subtopic 820-10, Fair Value Measurements
and Disclosures { “ASC 820-10" ) and Accounting Standards Codification subtopic 825-10, Financial Instruments { "ASC 825-
10" ), which permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. Neither of
these statements had an impact on the Company s unaudited condensed consclidated financiat position, results of
operations or cash flows, The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts payable and short-term borrowings, as
reflected in the balance sheets, approximate fair value because of the short-term maturity of these instruments.

Stock-based Compensation




The Company records stock-based compensation expense pursuant to ASC 718-10, "Share Based Payment Arrangement”
which requires companies to measure compensation cost for stock-based employee compensation plans at fair value at the
grant date and recognize the expense over the employee's requisite service period, The Company’ s expected volatility
assumption is based on the historical volatility of Company’ s stock or the expected volatility of similar entities. The expected
life assumption is primarily based on historical exercise patterns and employee post-vesting termination behavior. The risk-free
interest rate for the expected term of the option is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant.

Stock-based compensation expense is recognized based on awards expected to vest, and there were no estimated forfeitures
as the Company has a short history of issuing options. ASC 718-10 requires forfeitures o be estimated at the time of grant and
revised in subsequent periods, if necessary, if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates.

Net | oss Per Share

The Company has adopted Accounting Standards Codification subtopic 260-10, Earnings Per Share ( "ASC 260-10" ) which
specifies the computation, presentation and disclosure requirements of earnings per share information. Basic earnings per
share have been calculated based upon the weighted average number of common shares outstanding. Common equivalent
shares are excluded from the computation of the diluted loss per share if their effect would be anti-dilutive.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets include a patent. With the adoption of FASB ASC Topic 350, “Intangibles” , intangible assets with a definite
life are amortized on a straight-line basis. The patent is being amortized over its estimated life of 10 years, Intangible assets
with a definite life are tested for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that a carrying amount of an asset
(asset group) may not be recaverable. An impairment loss would be recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
the estimated undiscounted cash flows used in determining the fair value of the asset. The amount of the impairment loss to be
recorded is calcutated by the excess of the asset’ s carrying value over its fair value. Fair value is generally determined using a
discounted cash flow analysis. Costs related to internally develop intangible assets are expensed as incurred.

Recent accounting pronouncements

The FASB issued an Accounting Standards Update (ASU) that helps organizations address certain stranded income tax effects in
accumulated other comprehensive income (AOCH) resulting from the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act.

ASU No. 2018-02, income Statement—Reporting Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Reclassification of Certain Tax Effects
from Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income, provides financial statement preparers with an option to reclassify stranded
tax effects within AQC| to retained eamings in each period in which the effect of the change in the US. federal corporate
income tax rate in the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (or portion thereof) is recorded.

The ASU requires financial statement preparers to disclose:

. A description of the accounting policy for releasing income tax effects from ACC;
. Whether they elect to reclassify the stranded income tax effects from the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act; and
. Information about the other income tax effects that are reclassified.

The amendments affect any organization that is required to apply the provisions of Topic 220, Income Statement—Reporting
Comprehensive Income, and has items of other comprehensive income for which the related tax effects are presented in other
comprehensive income as required by GAAP,

The amendments are effective for alt organizations for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim periods
within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted. Organizations should apply the proposed amendments either in the
period of adoption or retrospectively to each period (or periods) in which the effect of the change in the US. federal corporate
income tax rate in the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act is recognized.




The FASB has issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2018-05, Income Taxes {Topic 740): Amendments to SEC
Paragraphs Pursuant to SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 118. ASU 2018-05 amends certain SEC material in Topic 740 for the
income tax accounting implications of the recently issued Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (Act}. ‘

ASU 2018-05 adds the following guidance, among other things, to the FASB Accounting Standards Codification™ regarding the
Act:

. Question 1:f the accounting for certain income tax effects of the Act is not completed by the time a company issues its
financial statements that include the reporting period in which the Act was enacted, what amounts should a company include in
its financial statements for those income tax effects for which the accounting under Topic 740 is incomplete?

. Answer 1:In a company’ s financial statements that include the reporting period in which the Act was enacted, a
company must first reflect the income tax effects of the Act in which the accounting under Topic 740 is complete. These
completed amounts would not be provisional amounts. The company would then also report provisional amounts for thase
specific income tax effects of the Act for which the accounting under Topic 740 will be incomplete but a reasonable estimate
can be determined. For any specific income tax effects of the Act for which a reasonable estimate cannot be determined, the
company would not report provisional amounts and would continue ta apply Topic 740 based on the provisions of the tax laws
that were in effect immediately prior to the Act being enacted. For those income tax effects for which a company was not able
to determine a reasonable estimate (such that no related provisional amount was reported for the reporting period in which the
Act was enacted), the company would repori provisional amounts in the first reporting period in which a reascnable estimate
can be determined.

. Question 2: If an entity accounts for certain income tax effects of the Act under a measurement period approach, what
disclosures should be provided?

. Answer 2:The staff believes an entity should include financial statement disclosures to provide information about the
material financia reporting impacts of the Act for which the accounting under Topic 740 is incomplete, including:

a. Qualitative disclosures of the income tax effects of the Act for which the accounting is incomplete;

b, Disclosures of items reported as provisional amounts;

¢, Disclasures of existing current or deferred tax amounts for which the income tax effects of the Act have not been completed;
d. The reason why the initial accounting is incomplete;

e. The additicnal information that is needed to be obtained, prepared, or analyzed in order to compilete the accounting
requirements under Topic 740;

f. The nature and amount of any measurement period adjustments recognized during the reporting period;

g. The effect of measurement period adjustments on the effective tax rate; and

h, When the accounting for the income tax effects of the Act has been completed.

ASU 2018-05 is effective upon inclusion in the FASB Codification.

The FASE has issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU} No. 2018-17, Consolidation (Topic 810): Targeted Improvementis to
Related Party Guidance for Variable Interest Entities, that reduces the cost and complexity of financial reporting associated with
consolidation of variable interest entities (VIFs) A VIE is an organization in which consolidation is not based on a majority of
voting rights.

The new guidance supersedes the private company alternative for common control leasing arrangements issued in 2014 and
expands it to all qualifying common control arrangements.

Under the new standard, a private company could make an accounting policy election to not appiy VIE guidance to legal
entities under common control {including common control leasing arrangements) when certain criteria are met. This
accounting policy election must be applied by a private company to all current and future tegal entities under cammon control
that meet the criteria for appiying the alternative. A private company will be required to continue to apply other consolidation
guidance, specifically the voting interest entity guidance.




Additionaily, a private company electing the alternative is required to provide detailed disciosures about its involvement with,
and exposure to, the legal entity under common control,

The ASU also amends the guidance for determining whether a decision-making fee is a variable interest. The amendments
require organizations to consider indirect interests heid through related parties under common controi on a proportional basis
rather than as the equivalent of a direct interest in its entirety (as currently required in GAAP). Therefare, these amendments
likely will result in more decision makers not consolidating ViEs.

For organizations other than private companies, the amendments in this ASU are effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2019, and interim periods within those fiscal years. The amendments in this ASU are effective for a private
company for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December
15, 2021. Early adoption is permitted.

Tabular Disclosure of Contractual Obligations

Operating Leases

We were not party to any leases agreement during the year ended December 31, 2018.

Contractual Obligations

Asa “smaller reporting company” , we are not required to provide tabular disclosure obligations.

{tem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Asa “smaller reporting company” , we are not required to provide the infermation required by this ltem.

ltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the shareholders and the board of directors of TransAKT Ltd.
Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of TransAKT Ltd. and its subsidiaries (the "Company"} as of
December 31, 2018 and 2017, the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in shareholders’  equity, and cash
flows, for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2018, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the
"financial statements"). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Company as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the consolidated resuits of its operations and its cash flows for each of
the two years in the period ended December 31, 2018, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will cantinue as a going concern, As
discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has suffered recurring losses from operations and
has a net capital deficiency that raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern, Management's plans in
regard to these matters are also described in Note 2. The consolidated financial statements do not inciude any adjustments that
might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

Basis for Opinion

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Qur responsibiity is to0 express
an opinion on the Company's consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm
registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {(United States) ("PCAOB") and are required to be independent
with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities faws and the applicable rules and regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we pian and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material
misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit
of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits we are required to obtain an understanding of internal
control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

Cur audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks, Such procedures included
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Our audits
also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consclidated financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinicon.

/s/ Centurion ZD CPA & Co.
Centurion ZD CPA & Co.
{as successor to Centurion ZD CPA Limited)

We have served as the Company's auditor since 2016,
Hong Kong, SAR
April 1,2019
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TRANSAKT LTD.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Prepayments
Total Current Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accrued expenses
Convertible Promissory Note
Total Current Liabilities

Total liabilities

Stockholders’ Equity

Preferred stock, 200,000,000 shares authorized for issuance,
$0.001 par value, 0 share issued and outstanding

Common stock, 700,000,000 shares authorized for issuance,
$0.001 par value, 133,506,570 shares and 133,506,570
shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2018 and
2017, respectively

Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated deficit

Other comprehensive income

Stock subscription receivable

Treasury stock, common stock, at cost, O share at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively

Total Stockholders' Equity

Total Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

December 31,

December 31,

2018 2017

$ 227,088 435,630
12,000 10,0600

239,088 445,630

$ 239,088 445,630
3 37,287 35,656
37,287 35,656

37,287 35,656

133,506 133,506

24,265,011 24,265,011
(22,558,836) (22,350,526)

(437,880) (438,017)

{1,200,000) (1,200,000)

201,801 409,974

201,801 409,974

] 239,088 445,630

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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TRANSAKT LTD.

CONSOLUIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

Sales, net
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Loss from operations
Other income (expense)
interest expense
Currency exchange gain/ (foss)
Total other income

Loss before income taxes

Provision for income taxes expense (benefit)
Net loss

Net loss attributable to TRANSAKT LTD.

Loss per share:
Basic and diluted income (loss) common stockholders per share

Weighted average number of shares outstanding:
Basic and diluted

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Net profits (ioss}

Foreign currency translation adjustment

Comprehensive income (loss)

Comprehensive income (foss) attributable to TRANSAKT LTD.

2018 2017
$ - 8 -
(208,089) (207,796)
(208,089 (207,796)
- (13,333)
(221) 189
(221) (13,144)
{208,310) (220,940)
(208,310) (220,940}
$ {(208310) $ (220,940
$ (0.002) % (0.002)
133,506,570 116,811,045
$ (208,310) $ {220,940)
137 {4,849)
{208,173) (225,789}
$ (208173 § (225,789

The accempanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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TRANSAKT LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS'  DEFICIT
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Common Stock Additional Stock Accumuiated Other Treasury Stock.at Cost Total
Shares Amount Paid-in Subscription Deficit Comprehensive Shares Amount
Capital Receivable income {loss

Balance at
December
31, 2016 28439504 $ 28440 $23,319411 § (1,200,000 $ (22,129,586) § 433,168) - % - § 414,903}
Issue
Common
Stock 105,066,656 165,066 945,600 - - - - - 1,050,666
Net foss - - - - (220,940 {4,849 - - {225789)
Balance at
December
31, 2017 133,506,570 § 133506 $24,265011 ¢ {1,200,000) $ (22,350,526) $ {438,017) - % - % 409974
Net loss (208,310) 137 (208,173)
Batance at
December
31,2018

133,506,570 § 133,506  $24,265011 % (1,200,000; $ (22,558,836) 3 {437,880) - 3 - § 201801

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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TRANSAKT LTD.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

Cash flows from operating activities
Net profits (loss} available to common stockholders
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Interest expenses
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Decrease (Increase) in prapayments
Increase {Dacrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses
Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Restricted cash :
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Net repayment of amount due to shareholders
Proceeds from issuance of Convertible Promissory Note
Net cash provided by financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

Net increase {decrease} in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning
Ending

Non cash financing activities
Issuance of common stock to settle convertible promissory note and its
relevant accrued interest

Supplemental disclosure of cash flows
Cash paid during the year for:
interest expense

2018 2017
$ (208,310) (220,940)
- 13,333
{2,000) -
1,631 9,485
(208,679) (198,122)
137 (4,849)
(208,542) (202,971)
435,630 638,601
$ 227,088 435,630
- 1,050,666
$ - -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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TRANSAKT LTD.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2018

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION

TransAKT Ltd. (the "Company” ) was incorporated under the laws of the Province of Alberta on June 3, 1997. The Company
completed the acquisition of Green Point Resources Inc. on October 18, 2000 whereby it became a publicly traded company
listed on the Canadian Venture Exchange. In 2004 the Company voluntarily delisted from the TSX Venture Exchange and
retained a listing on the Over the Counter Bulletin Board in the United States.

In October 2004 the Company purchased certain assets of IP Mental Inc, a Taiwan based Voice over Internet Protocol (VolP)
company. The company name was changed from TransAKT Corp. to TransAKT Ltd. on September 29, 2006. The Company
designs and develops Voice over Internet Protocol ( "VolP" ) solutions and mobite payment terminals for the consumer
electronics industry.

On November 15, 2006 TransAKT Ltd and the shareholders of Taiwan Halee International Co. Lid. (HTT), entered into a Share
Exchange Agreement in which TransAKT Ltd. acquired 100% of Taiwan Halee International Co. Ltd." s outstanding common
stock. HTT was incorporated under the laws of Republic of China in 1985, HTT is engaged in designing, manufacturing and
distribution of Taiwan telecommunications equipment. The acquisition has been accounted for as a reverse acquisition under
the purchase method of accounting. Accordingly, the merger of the two companies has been recorded as a recapitalization of
HTT, with HTT being treated as the continuing entity.

On August 12, 2010, the Company filed the Registration Statement (Form S-4) in connection with the continuation of the
Company from Alberta to Nevada. Based upon the number of common shares of TransAKT Ltd. a Nevada carporation
{ “TransAKT Nevada” ), to be issued to the shareholders of TransAKT Ltd., an Alberta corporation ( "TransAKT Alberta" ), ona
one-for-one basis upon completion of the Continuation and based on 102,645,120 shares of common stock of TransAKT Ltd.,
an Alberta corporation, issued and outstanding as of August 12, 2010.

The Articles of Conversion of TransAKT Nevada provides that the authorized capital of the TransAKT will be 300,000,000 shares
of common stock, par value $0.001 per share and 200,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $0.001 per share.

On July 26, 2012, the Company acquired 100% equity of Vegfab Agricultural Technology Co, Ltd. {the "Vegfab” ), a company
incorporated under the laws of the Republic of China ( “ROC, Taiwan” ). Vegfab is mainly engaged in selling agricultural
equipment used to grow vegetables using simulated sunlight from LED lamps in hycroponic systems.

On January 4, 2013, the Company entered into a Share Purchase and Sale Agreement with a shareholder pursuant to which the
Company sold to him 100% of all issued and outstanding securities of its wholly owned subsidiary Taiwan Halee international
Corporation { "HTT" ). In consideration of the sale of HTT, the shareholder has transferred to the Company 45,000,000
previously issued common voting shares of TransAKT with a deemed value of $0.04 per share or $1.8 million in the aggregate.

On October 30, 2013, Million Talented Ltd., a related party 50% owned by the Company’ s president and director, contributed
$516 (equals to HKD 4,000} to obtain 40% ownership of TransAKT Bio Agritech Ltd, formerly named as TransAKT (HK) Ltd,,
{ “TransAKT H.K }. TransAKT H.K. was incorporated in Hong Kong on November 20, 2007. It had no operation until 2013,
TransAKT H.K.'s primary business is conducting research and development on new agricultural technology relating to the
Company' s business.




NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principies of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of TransAKT (BVI) Limited and its wholly owned subsidiaries,
TransAKT Bio Agritech Ltd., coilectively referred to within as the Company. All material intercompany accounts, transactions,
and profits have been eliminated in consolidation.

Going Concern

The Company has incurred a net loss of $208,310 and $220,940 during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively, and has an accumulated deficit of $22,558,836 and $22,350,526 as of December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017,
respectively.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going
concern. This basis of accounting contemplates the recovery of the Company’ s assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the
normal course of business. This presentation presumes funds will be available to finance ongoing research and development,
operations and capital expenditures and permit the realization of assets and the payment of liabilities in the normal course of
operations for the foreseeable future.

The ability of the Company to continue research and development projects and realize the capitalized value of proprietary
technologies and related assets is dependent upon future commercial success of the technologies and raising sufficient funds
to continue research and development as well as to effectively market its products. Through December 31, 2018, the Company
has not realized commercial success of the technologies, nor have they raised sufficient funds to continue research and
development or to market its products.

There can be no assurances that there will be adequate financing available to the Company and the consolidated financial
statements do not include any adjustments to reflect the possible future effects on the recoverabiiity and classification of assets
or the amounts and classification of liabilities that may result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

The Company has taken certain restructuring steps to provide the necessary capital to continue its operations. These steps
included: (1) Tightly budgeting and controlling all expenses; (2) The Company pians to continue actively seeking additional
funding opportunities ; (3) The company is seeking for other business opportunities to create saurces of income.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States
{ "GAAP" ) requires management to make certain estimates and assumpticns that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disciosure of contingent assets and liabifities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual resutts could differ from those estimates,
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue Recognition

Revenues are recognized when finished products are shipped to customers and both titte and the risks and rewards of
ownership are transferred and collectability is reasonably assured. The Company' s revenues are recorded upon confirmed
acceptance after inspection by the customers of the Company.

Exchange Gain (Loss)

During the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the transactions of TransAKT Bio Agritech Ltd. were denominated in
foreign currency and were recorded in Hong Kong Doltar (HKD) at the rates of exchange in effect when the transactions occur.
Exchange gains and josses are recognized for the different foreign exchange rates applied when the foreign currency assets and
liabilities are settled.

Translation Adjustment

The Company financial statements are presented in the U.S. dollar ($}, which is the Company’ s reporting currency, while its
functional currency is Hong Kong Dollar {(HKD). Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional
currency rate ruling at the date of transaction. Any differences between the initially recorded amount and the settlement
amount are recorded as a gain or loss on foreign currency transaction in the consolidated statements of income. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet date. Any differences are taken to profit or loss as a gain or loss on foreign currency translation in the statements
of income,

In accordance with ASC 830, Foreign Currency Matters, the Company translates the assets and liabilities into U.S. dollar ($) using
the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date and the statements of operations and cash fiows are translated at an
average rate during the reporting period. Adjustments resulting from the translation from HKD into U.S. dollar are recorded in
stockhalders'  equity as part of accumulated other comprehensive income.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income includes accumulated foreign currency translation gains and losses. The Company has reported the
components of comprehensive income on its statements of stockholders’  equity.

Advertising

Advertising expenses consist primarily of costs of promotion for corporate image and product marketing and costs of direct
advertising. The Company expenses alf advertising costs as incurred,

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with ASC 740, Income Taxes, which requires that the Company
recoghize deferred tax liabilities and assets based on the differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and the
tax basis of assets and liabilities, using enacted tax rates in effect in the years the differences are expected to reverse. Deferred
income tax benefit (expense) results from the change in net deferred tax assets or deferred tax liabilities, A valuation allowance
is recorded when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that some or all of any deferred tax assets will not be
realized.




NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Staternent of Cash Flows

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), cash flows from the Company's operations are based
upon the local currencies. As a result, amounts related to assets and liabilities reported on the statement of cash flows will not
necessarily agree with changes in the corresponding balances on the balance sheet.

Concentration of Credit Risk

financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk are accounts receivable and other
receivables arising from its normal business activities. The Company has a diversified customer base. The Company controls
credit risk related to accounts receivable through credit approvals, credit limits and monitoring procedures. The Company
routinely assesses the financial strength of its customers and, based upon factors surrounding the credit risk, establishes an
affowance, if required, for un-collectible accounts and, as a consequence, believes that its accounts receivabie credit risk
exposure beyond such aflowance is limited.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and cash in time deposits, certificates of deposit and all highly liquid debt
instruments with original maturities of three months or less,

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

In the first quarter of fiscal year 2008, the Company adopted Accounting Standards Codification subtopic 820-10, Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures { "ASC 820-10" ). ASC 820-10 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair
value, and enhances fair value measurement disclosure. ASC 820-10 delays, until the first quarter of fiscal year 2009, the
effective date for ASC 820-10 for all non-financial assets and non-financial liabitities, except those that are recognized or
disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis (at least annuaily). The adoption of ASC 820-10 did not
have a material impact on the Company' s financial position or operations.

Effactive October 1, 2008, the Company adopted Accounting $tandards Codification subtopic §20-10, Fair Value Measurements
and Disclasures ( "ASC 820-10" ) and Accounting Standards Codification subtopic 825-10, Financial instruments ( "ASC 825-
10" ), which permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. Neither of
these statements had an impact on the Company’ s unaudited condensed consolidated financial position, results of
operations or cash flows. The carrying vaiue of cash and cash equivalents, accounts payable and short-term borrowings, as
reflected in the balance sheets, approximate fair value because of the short-term maturity of these instruments.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Stock-based Compensation

The Company records stock-based compensation expense pursuant to ASC 718-10, "Share Based Payment Arrangement;”
which requires companies to measure compensation cost for stock-based employee compensation plans at fair value at the
grant date and recognize the expense over the employee's requisite service period. The Company’ s expected volatility
assumption is based on the historical volatility of Company’ s stock or the expected volatility of similar entities. The expected
life assumption is primarily based on historical exercise patterns and employee post-vesting termination behavior. The risk-free
interest rate for the expected term of the option is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant.

Stock-based compensation expense is recognized based on awards expected to vest, and there were no estimated forfeitures
as the Company has a short history of issuing options. ASC 718-10 requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and
revised in subsequent periods, if necessary, if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates.

Net 1 0ss Per Share

The Company has adopted Accounting Standards Codification subtopic 260-10, Earnings Per Share ( "ASC 260-10" ) which
specifies the computation, presentation and disclosure requirements of earnings per share information. Basic earnings per
share have been calculated based upon the weighted average number of common shares outstanding. Common equivalent
shares are excluded from the computation of the diluted loss per share if their effect would be anti-dilutive.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets include a patent. With the adoption of FASB ASC Topic 350, “Intangibles” , intangible assets with a definite
life are amortized on a straight-line basis. The patent is being amortized over its estimated life of 10 years. Intangible assets
with a definite life are tested for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that a carrying amount of an asset
(asset group) may not be recoverable. An impairment loss would be recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
the estimated undiscounted cash flows used in determining the fair value of the asset. The amount of the impairment loss to be
recorded is calculated by the excess of the asset’ s carrying value over its fair value. Fair value is generally determined using a
discounted cash flow analysis. Costs reiated to internally develop intangible assets are expensed as incurred.

Recent accounting pronouncements

The FASB issued an Accounting Standards Update {(ASU) that helps organizations address certain stranded income tax effects in
accumulated other comprehensive income (AOCI} resulting from the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act.

ASU No. 2018-02, Income Statement—Reporting Comprehensive Income (Topic 220} Reclassification of Certain Tax Effects
from Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income, provides financial statement preparers with an option to reclassify stranded
tax effects within AOCI to retained earnings in each period in which the effect of the change in the U.S. federal corporate
income tax rate in the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (or portion thereof} is recorded.

The ASU requires financial statement preparers to disclose:

. A description of the accounting policy for releasing income tax effects from AOCI;
. Whether they elect ta reclassify the stranded income tax effects from the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act; and
. Information about the other income tax effects that are reclassified.

The amendments affect any organization that is required to apply the provisions of Topic 220, Income Statement—Reporting
Comprehensive Income, and has items of other comprehensive income for which the related tax effects are presented in other
comprehensive income as required by GAAP,

10




The amendments are effective for all organizations for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim periods
within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted. Organizations should apply the proposed amendments either in the
period of adoption or retrospectively to each period (or periods) in which the effect of the change in the U.S. federal corporate
income tax rate in the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act is recognized.

The FASB has issued Accounting Standards Update {(ASU) No. 2018-05, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Amendments to SEC
Paragraphs Pursuant to SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 118. ASU 2018-05 amends certain SEC material in Topic 740 for the
income tax accounting implications of the recently issued Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (Act).

ASH 201.8-05 adds the following guidance, among other things, to the FASB Accounting Standards Codification™ regarding the
Act:

. Question 1:If the accounting for certain income tax effects of the Act is not completed by the time a company
issues its financial statements that include the reporting period in which the Act was enacted, what amounts should a company
include in its financial statements for those income tax effects for which the accounting under Topic 740 is incomplete?

. Answer L:in a company’ s financial statements that include the reporting period in which the Act was enacted, a
company must first reflect the income tax effects of the Act in which the accounting under Topic 740 is complete. These
completed amounts would not be provisional amounts, The company would then aiso report provisional amounts for those
specific income tax effects of the Act for which the accounting under Topic 740 wilt be incomplete but a reasonable estimate
can be determined. For any specific income tax effects of the Act for which a reasonable estimate cannot be determined, the
company wouid not report provisional amounts and would continue to apply Topic 740 based on the provisions of the tax laws
that were in effect immediately prior to the Act being enacted. For those income tax effects for which a company was not able
to determine a reasonable astimate (such that no related provisional amount was reported for the reporting period in which the
Act was enacted), the comnpany would report provisional amounts in the first reporting period in which 2 reasonable estimate
can be determined. -

. Question 2: If an entity accounts for certain income tax effects of the Act under a measurement period approach,
what disclosures should be provided?

. Answer 2:The staff believes an entity should include financial statement disclosures to provide information about
the material financial reporting impacts of the Act for which the accounting under Topic 740 is incomplete, including:

a. Qualitative disclosures of the income tax effects of the Act for which the accounting is incomplete;

b. Disclosures of items reported as provisional amounts;

c. Disclosures of existing current or deferred tax amounts for which the income tax effects of the Act have not been completed;
d. The reason why the initial accounting is incomplete;

e. The additional information that is needed to be obtained, prepared, or analyzed in order to complete the accounting
requirements under Topic 740;

f. The nature and amount of any measurement period adjustments recognized during the reporting period;

g. The effect of measurement period adjustments on the effective tax rate; and

h. When the accounting for the income tax effects of the Act has been completed.

ASU 2018-05 is effective upon inclusion in the FASB Codification.

FASB Releases ASU No. 2018-09. The FASB has released Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2018-09, Codification
Improvements. ASU 2018-09 affects a wide variety of Topics in the Codification including:

. Amendments to Subtopic 220-10,Income Statement- Reporting Comprehensive Income—Overall. The guidance in
paragraph 220-10-45-10B(b} states that taxes not payable in cash are required to be reported as a direct adjustment to
paid-in capital. This requirement conflicts with other guidance in Topic 740,income Taxes, Subtopic 805-740,Business
Combinations—Income Taxes, and Subtopic 852-740,Reorganizations— Income Taxes, which generally states that
income taxes and adjustments to those accounts upon a business combination or a bankruptcy that is eligible for fresh-
start reporting must be recognized in income. ASU No. 2018-09 clarifies the guidance in paragraph 220-10-45-108 by
removing the generic phrase taxes not payable in cash and adding guidance that is specific to certain quasi-
reorganizations.
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Amendments to Subtopic 470-50,Debt—Modifications and Extinguishments.The guidance in paragraph 470- 50-40-2
requires that the difference between the reacquisition price of debt and the net carrying amount of extinguished debt be
recoghized in income in the period of extinguishment. The guidance in that paragraph was not amended by FASB
Statement No. 155, Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments, or FASB Statement No. 159,The Fair Value
Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities; therefore, it does not spacifically address extinguishments of debt
when the fair value option is elected. ASU No. 2018-09 clarifies that:

1. When the fair value option has been elected on debt that is extinguished, the net carrying amount of the extinguished
debt equals its fair value at the reacquisition date, and

2, Related gairs or losses in other comprehensive income must be included in net income upon extinguishment of the
debt.

Amendments to Subtopic 480-10,Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity—Overall. The guidance in paragraph 480-10-25-
15 prohibits the combination of freestanding financial instruments within the scope of Subtopic 480-10 with
noncontrolling interest, unless the combination is required by Topic 815,Derivatives and Hedging. The example in
paragraphs 480-10-55-55 and 480-10-55-59 conflicts with that guidance by stating that freestanding opticn contracts
with the terms in Derivative 2 should be accounted for on a combined basis with the noncontrolling interest, The source
of the example in paragraph 480-10-55-59 is from EITF Issue No. 00-4, “Majority Owner' s Accounting for a Transaction
in the Shares of a Consolidated Subsidiary and a Derivative Indexed to the Noncontrolling Interest in That Subsidiary.”
fssue 00-4 was nullified by FASB Statement No. 150,Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of
both Liabilities and Equity, but a conforming amendment to the example in paragraph 480-10-55-59 was not made to
align it with the guidance in Statement 150, The amendment in this Update conforms the guidance in paragraphs 480-
10-55-55 and 480- 10-55-59 with the guidance in Statement 150.

Amendments to Subtopic 718-740,Compensation—Stock Compensation—Income Taxes.The guidance in paragraph
718-740-35-2, as amended, is unclear on whether an entity should recognize excess tax benefits {or tax deficiencies) for
compensation expense that is taken on the entity’ s tax return. The amendment to paragraph 718-740-35-2 in ASU No,
2018-09 clarifies that an entity should recognize excess tax benefits (that is, the difference in tax benefits between the
deduction for tax purposes and the compensation cost recognized for financial statement reporting} in the period when
the tax deduction for compensation expense is taken on the entity’ s tax return. This includes deductions that are taken
on the entity' s return in a different period from when the event that gives rise to the tax deduction occurs and the
uncertainty about whether (1) the entity wilf receive a tax deduction and (2) the amount of the tax deduction is resolved.

Amendments to Subtapic 805-740,Business Combinations— Income Taxes.The amendments to paragraph 805-740-25-
13 removes a list of three methods for allocating the consolidated tax provision to an acquired entity after acquisition
that is inconsistent with guidance in Topic 740. The three methods for tax allocation described in paragraph 805-740-25-
13 do not follow the broad principles of being systematic, rational, and consistent with Topic 740. The amendment
removes the allocation methods in paragraph 805-740-25-13 and conforms the guidance in Subtopic 805-740 with the
guidance in Topic 740.

Amendments to Subtopic 815-10,Derivatives and Hedging— Overall.The amendment to paragraphs 815-10- 45-4 and
815-10-45-5 in ASU No. 2018-09 clarifies the circumstances in which derivatives may be offset. Under certain specific
conditions, derivatives may be offset if three of the four eriteria in paragraph 210-20- 45-1 are met. One of the criteria—
the intent to set off—is not required to offset derivative assets and liabilities for certain amounts arising from derivative
instruments recognized at fair value and executed with the same counterparty under a masier netting agreement.
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. Amendments to Subtopic 820-10,Fair Value Measurement— Overall.The amendments to paragraph 820-10- 35-16D in
ASU No. 2018-09 clarify the Board’ s decisions about the measurement of the fair value of a liability or instrument
classified in a reporting entity’ s shareholder' s equity from the perspective of a market participant that holds an
identicaf itern as an asset at the measurement date. A technical inquiry questioned how transfer restrictions embedded in
an asset should affect the fair value of the correspending liability or equity instrument from the perspective of the issuer.
The amendments correct the wording of paragraph 820- 10-35-16D to clarify how an entity should account for those
restrictions. The amendments are not intended to substantively change the application of GAAP. However, it is possible
that the amendments may resuit in a change to existing practice for some entities.

The amendments to paragraphs 820-10-35-18D through 35-18F and 820-10-35- 18H through 35-18L revise the current
guidance to allow portfolios of financial instruments and nonfinancial instruments accounted for as derivatives in accordance
with Topic 815 to use the portfolio exception to valuation. The amendments improve guidance by adding wording that
explicitly states that a group of financial assets, financial liabilities, nonfinancial items accounted for as derivatives in accordance
with Topic 815, or a combination of these items that otherwise meet the criteria to do so are permitted to apply the portfolio
exception for measuring fair value of the group. This allows entities to measure fair value on a net basis for those portfolios in
which financial assets and financial liabilities and nonfinancial instruments are managed and valued together.

. Amendments to Subtopic 940-405Financial Services—Brokers and Dealers—Liabilities.Paragraph 940-405- 55-1
contains incomplete guidance about offsetting on the balance sheet. The current guidance focuses only on explicit
settlement dates as a determining criterion for offsetting when, in fact, an entity should consider alf the requirements in
Section 210-20-45,Balance Sheet—Offsetting—Other Presentation Matters, to determine whether a right of offset exists.
There is similar guidance in paragraph 942-210-45-3. Paragraphs 940-405-55- 1 and 942-210-45- 3 originated from two
different AICPA Audit and Accounting Guides and paraphrase the guidance in Subtopic 210-20, albeit each slightly
differently, The Board decided to amend both paragraphs so that the industry Topic guidance refers to the completé
guidance for offsetting.

. Amendments to Subtopic 962-325,Plan Accounting—Defined Contribution Pension Plans—Investments— Other.The
amendment to Subtopic 962-325 removes the stable value common collective trust fund from the illustrative example in
paragraph 962-325-55-17 to avoid the interpretation that such an investrment would never have a readily determinable
fair value and, therefore, would always use the net asset value per share practical expedient. Rather, a plan shotid
evaluate whether a readily determinable fair value exists to determine whether those investments may qualify for the
practical expedient to measure at net asset value in accordance with Topic 820.

Transition and Effective Date. The transition and effective date guidance is based on the facts and circumstances of each
amendment. Some of the amendments in ASU No, 2018-09 do not reguire transition guidance and will be effective upon
issuance of ASU No, 2018-09. However, many of the amendments do have transition guidance with effective dates for annual
periods beginning after December 15, 2018, for public business entities.

In addition, there are some conforming amendrments in ASU Ne, 2018-09 that have been made to recently issued guidance that
is not yet effective that may require application of the transition and effective date guidance in the original ASU. For example,
there are conforming amendments to Topic 820 and Subtopic 944-310, Financial Services—Insurance—Receivables, that are
related to the amendments in Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-01, Financial Instruments—Overall (Subtopic 825-10):
Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, which require application of the transition and
effective date guidance in that ASU,

The FASB has issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2018-17, Consalidation {Topic 810} Targeted Improvements to
Related Party Guidance for Variable Interest Entities, that reduces the cost and complexity of financial reporting associated with
consolidation of variable interest entities (VIEs). A VIE is an organization in which consolidation is not based on a majority of
voting rights.

The new guidance supersedes the private company alternative for common control leasing arrangements issued in 2014 and
expands it to all qualifying common controf arrangements.
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Under the new standard, a private company could make an accounting policy election to not apply VIE guidance to legal
entities under common control (including common control leasing arrangements) when certain criteria are met. This
accounting policy efection must be applied by a private company to all current and future legal entities under common control
that meet the criteria for applying the alternative. A private company will be required to continue to apply other consolidation
guidance, specifically the voting interest entity guidance.

Additionally, a private company electing the alternative is required to provide detailed discosures about its involvement with,
and exposure to, the legal entity under common controt,

The ASU also amends the guidance for determining whether a decision-making fee is a variable interest. The amendments
require organizations to consider indirect interests held through related parties under common control on a proportionat basis
rather than as the equivalent of a direct interest in its entirety (as currently required in GAAP), Therefore, these amendments
flikely will result in more decision makers not consolidating VIEs,

For organizations other than private companies, the amendments in this ASU are effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2019, and interim periods within those fiscal years. The amendments in this ASU are effective for a private
company for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December
15, 2021. Early adoption is permitted.

NOTE 3 - PREPAYMENTS
Prepayments consist of the following:

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Prepaid expenses 12,000 10,000
$ . 12000 $ 10,000

NOTE 4 - ACCRUED EXPENSES
Accrued expenses consist of the following:

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Accrued payroll $ 9344 3§ 9,344
Accrued employee benefits and pension expenses 288 288
Accrued professional fees 27,655 26,024

$ 37287 % 35,656

NOQOTE 5 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

On February 28, 2017, Mr. Ho Kang-wing (the holder of convertible promissory note) elected to convert the entire outstanding
amount of the Note into 105,066,666 comman shares of the Company including the accumulated interest. Therefore, the issued
and outstanding common shares of the Company were increased to 133,506,570 shares at that date,

There was no related party transaction for the year ended December 31, 2018 and 2017,
NOTE 6 - INCOME TAXES

The Corpany is registered in the State of Nevada and has operations in primarily two tax jurisdictions -The United States and
Hong Kong, For the operations in the US, the Company has incurred net accumulated operating losses for income tax
purposes, The Company believes that it is more likely than not that these net accumulated operating losses will not be utilized
in the future. Therefore, the Company has provided fuil vaiuation allowance for the deferred tax assets arising from the losses in
the U.S. as of December 31, 2018 and 2017. Accordingly, the Company has no net deferred tax assets on the LS. operations.
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United States of America

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company had net operating loss carry-forwards of approximately $1,463,206 that
may be available to reduce future years' taxable income through 2035, Future tax benefits which may arise as a result of these
losses have not been recognized in these financial statements, as their realization is determined not likely to occur and
accordingly, the Company has recorded a valuation aliowance for the deferred tax asset relating to these tax loss carry-
forwards.

The provision for Federal income tax consists of the following years ended December 31:

2018 2017
Federal income tax benefit attributable to:
Current Operations $ 84,265 $ 97,017
Less: Valuation aliowance (84,265) {97,017)
Net provision for Federal income taxes $ - % -

Deferred taxes:

The tax effect of temporary differences that give rise to the Company’ s deferred tax asset as of December 31, 2018 and 2017
are as foliows:

us: 2018 2017
Deferred tax asset — non-current:

Net operating loss carry forward $ 1,463,206 % 1,378,941
Valuation allowance (1,463,206} (1,378,941)
Net deferred tax asset $ - % -

The following is a reconciliation of the statutory tax rate to the effective tax rate for the years ended December 31, 2018 and
2017:

2018 2017
U5, Federal tax at statutory rate 21% 34%
Valuation allowance (21%) {34%)
Foreign income tax- HK 16.5% 16.5%
Cther (a) {16,5%) {16.5%)
Effective tax rate 0% 0%

Other represents expenses incurred by the Company that are not deductible for HK income taxes and changes in valuation
allowance for HK entities for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.
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NOTE 7 - COMMON STOCK

On June 21, 2011, the Company issued 55,500,000 shares of its common stock for $0.015 per share to individuals for aggregate
gross proceeds of $832,500.

On June 21, 2011, the Company converted its outstanding related party notes payable totaling $523,908 into 34,927,218 shares
of Commeon Stock. The deemed price of the shares issued was $0.015.

On June 21, 2011, the Company issued an aggregate of 266,667 shares of common stock, at a deemed price of $0.015 per
share, to pay $4,000 for services.

On May 17, 2012, the Company issued an aggregate of 39,854,567 shares of common stock at a price of $0.03 per share,
pursuant to the closing of a private placement, for aggregate gross proceeds of approximately $1,200,000.

On lune 25, 2012, the Company amended its articles of incorporation to increase the authorized number of shares of common
stock from 300,000,000 to 700,000,000 shares of common stock, par value of $§0.001 per share,

On July 26, 2012, the Company issued 150,000,000 shares of common stock as a part of consideration for acquisition of Vegfab
Agricultural Technotogy Co,, Ltd. (Note 12).

In July, 2012, the Company issued 18,333,333 shares of common stock to the Company’ s president, pursuant to the
acquisition of Vegfab Agricultural Technology Co., Ltd. The Company agreed to pay its president share compensation of 10% of
the value of the acquisition that he secured for the company.

On January 4, 2013, the Company entered into a Share Purchase and Sale Agreement with Mr. Pan Yen Chu pursuant to which
the Company sold to Mr, Pan 100% of all issued and outstanding securities of its wholly owned subsidiary Taiwan Halee
International Corporation { “HTT* ). In consideration of the sale of HTT, Mr. Pan has transferred to the Company 45,000,000
previously issued common voting shares of TransAKT with a deemed value of $0.04 per share or $1.8 million in the aggregate.
The transfer of common shares was completed on January 7, 2013. In connection with the sale HTT, the 45,000,000 common
shares of the Company received as consideration will be returned to treasury. The 45,000,000 shares constitute approximately
11.5% of the Company’ s currently issued and outstanding common stock,

On September 16, 2013, the Company issued 140,678,401 shares of common stock to fifty-seven individuals for aggregate
proceeds of $9,300,785 at deemed prices as follows:

1 30,986 shares at US$0.03 per share;

2. 4,017,557 shares at US$0.04 per share;

3. 29,768,176 shares at US$0.045 per share;
4, 21,961,580 shares at US$0,05 per share;

5. 4,525,102 shares at US$0.06 per share; and
6. 80,375,000 shares at US$0.08 per share.

The Company paid $500,000 of commission to an individual for the above private placements,

On November 26, 2013, the Company issued 69,242,000 shares of common stock to nine individuals for aggregate proceeds of
$5,389,360 at deemed prices as follows;

1 5,000,000 shares at US$0.05 per share;
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2, 64,242,000 shares at US$0.08 per share;

On June 23, 2016, the company made a stock reverse split of 20 to 1. The issued and outstanding cormmon stock was
consolidated from 613,447,306 shares to 30,672,404 shares with fractional share round up to 1 share.

On October 4, 2016, the company cancelled the treasury siock of common shares 2,232,500.

On February 28, 2017, Mr. Ho Kang-wing (the holder of convertible promissory note}) elected to convert the entire outstanding
amount of the Nate into 105,066,666 common shares of the Company including the accumulated interest. Therefore, the issued
and outstanding common shares of the Company were increased to 133,506,570 shares at that date.

NOTE 8 - SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

On April 19, 2013, the Company granted to Mr. Christian Mielsen, accounting manager stock options to purchase 1,000,000 of
the Company' s common stock for services performed for the Company, at an exercise price of $0.03 per share. The options
have a five-year contractual term and are vested at the date of grant.

In accordance with the guidance provided in ASC Topic 718, Stock Compensation, the compensation costs associated with
these options are recognized, based on the grant-date fair values of these options, over the requisite service period, or vesting
period. Accordingly, the Company recognized a compensation expense of $56,643 for the period ended December 31, 2013.

The Company estimated the fair value of these options using the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model based on the
following weighted-average assumptions:

Date of grant 19-Apr-13
Fair value of common stock on date of grant (A) $ 0.06
Exercise price of the options ) 0.03
Expected life of the options (years) -
Dividend yieid 0.00%
Expected volatility 22357%
Risk-free interest rate 0.27%
Expected forfeiture per year (%) 0.00%
Weighted-average fair value of the options (per unit) $ 0.0566

The fair value of the Company's common stock was obtained from the closing price on the OTC Bulletin (A) Board as of
the dates of grant.

Fair value hierarchy of the above assumptions can be categorized as follows:

(1)  Level 1inputsinclude:

Fair value of common stock on date of grant- Obtained from the closing price of the Company’ s common stock quoted
on the OTC Bulletin Board as of the date of grant.

{2)  Level 2 inputs include:

Expected volatility- Based on historical volatility of the closing price of the Campany’ s common stock quoted on the
OTC Bultetin Board,

Risk-free rate- The risk-free rate of return reflects the interest rate for United States Treasury Note with similar time-to-
maturity to that of the options.
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(3) Level 3inputs include:

Expected lives- The expected lives of options granted were derived from the cutput of the option valuation model and
represented the period of time that options granted are expected to be cutstanding.

Expected forfeitures per year- The expected forfeitures are estimated at the dates of grant and will be revised in
subsequent periods pursuant to actual forfeitures, if significantly different from the previous estimates.

The estimates of fair value from the model are theoretical values of stock options and changes in the assumptions used in the
model could result in materially different fair value estimates. The actual vaiue of the stock options will depend on the market
value of the Company’ s common stack when the stock options are exercised.

Options issued and ocutstanding as of December 31, 2018 and their activities during the twelve months then ended are as
fotlows:

Weighted-
Average
Number of Weighted- Contractual Life
Average
Underlying Exercise Price Per Remaining in
Shares Share Years
Outstanding as of January 1, 2018 -4 -
Granted- Before reverse split 1,000,000 0.03
Granted- After reverse spilit 50,000 0.6
Expired {50,000) -
Forfeited - -

Outstanding as of December 31, 2018 - - R

Exercisable as of December 31, 2018 - - R

Vested and expected to vest - - -

As of December 31, 2018, the aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding was $0.
NOTE 9 - EARNINGS PER SHARE

The Company calculates earnings per share in accordance with ASC 260, Earnings Per Share, which requires a dual presentation
of basic and diluted earnings per share. Basic earnings per share are computed using the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the fiscal year. The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net income per common
share:
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The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net income per common share:

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Numerator
Met {loss)/income $ (208,310} ¢ (220,940}
Denominator
Weighted average shares — Basic EPS 133,506,570 116,811,045
Weighted average shares - Diluted EPS 133,506,570 116,811,045

Net income (loss) per share — Basic and Diluted

EPS - basic and diluted $ (0.002) 4 (0.002)
NOTE 10 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company evaluated all events or transactions that occurred after December 31, 2018 up through the date the Company
issued these financial statements.
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ltem 9, Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

There were no disagreements related to accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure, internal contrals or
auditing scope or procedure during the two fiscal years and interim periods, including the interim period up through the date
the relationship ended.

Item 9A, Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and Rule 15d-15(e} promulgated under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 {the "Exchange Act"), that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by
us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the
time periods specified in the rules and forms of the SEC, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our
management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure.

As of the end of the period covered by this report, cur management, with the participation of our chief executive officer and
chief financial officer (our principal executive officer, principal financial officer and principal accounting officer), carried out an
evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures. Based upon this evaluation, and the material
weaknesses outlined in our Management Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, our management concluded that
our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective.

Management’ s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. Under the
supervision and with the participation of our management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer (our
principal executive officer, principal financial officer and principal accounting officer), we conducted an evaluation of the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2018 using the criteria established in /nfernal
Control—integrated Frameworkissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQ).

A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is
a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of our annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or
detected on a timely basis, In our assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2018, we determined that there were controf deficiencies that constituted material weaknesses, as described below;

1.  Wedo not have an audit committee or a financial expert on our board of directors — While not being legally obligated to
have an audit committee, it is management’ s view that such a committee, including a financial expert member, is an
utmost important entity fevel control over our financial statements. Currently, the board of directors acts in the capacity
of the audit committee, and does not include a member that is considered to be independent of management to provide
the necessary oversight over management’ s activities.

2. We did not implement appropriate information technology controls - As of December 31, 2018, we retain copies of ali
financial data and material agreements; however, there is no formal procedure or evidence of narmal backup of our data
or off-site storage of the data in the event of theft, misplacement or foss due to unmitigated factors,

Accordingly, we concluded that these control deficiencies resulted in a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of
our annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis by our internal controls.
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As a result of the material weaknesses described above, management has concluded that we did not maintain effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2018 based on criteria established in infernal Control—Integrated
Frameworkissued by COSO.

Centurion ZD CPA & Co. (as successor to Centurion ZD CPA Limited), an independent registered public accounting firm, was
not required to and has not issued a report concerning the effectiveness of our internai control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2018.

Continuing Remediation Efforts to Address Deficiencies in our Internal Confrol Over Financial Reporting

Once we are engaged in a business of merit and have sufficient personnel available, then our board of directors, in particular
and in connection with the aforementioned deficiencies, will establish the following remediation measures:

1, Our board of directors will nominate an audit committee and audit committee financiai expert.

2. We will impiement formal procedures to ensure that appropriate backup of off-site storage of our data is implemented,
Changes in Internal Control

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018 there were no changes in our internai control over financial reporting (as
defined in Rule 13a-15{e} and Rule 15d-15{e) under the Exchange Act} that materially affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

item 9B. Other Information
None,
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PART Ul
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The following table sets forth the directors, executive officers, promoters and controf persons, their ages, and all offices and
positions held within our company as of December 31, 2018, Directors are elected for a period of one year and thereafter serve
until their successor is duly elected by the stockholders and qualified. Officers and other employees serve at the will of the
board of directors.

Date First Elected or
Name Age Position Appointed
Ho Kang-Wing 56 Chairman, Chief Executive March 12, 2015
Officer, President and Director
Yam Chi-Wah 56 Chief Financial Officer March 12, 2015
He Jiaxian 32 Director March 12, 2015
He Jingtian 64 Director March 12, 2015
Tam Yuk-Ching 52 Director March 12, 2015

Business Experience

The foliowing is a brief account of the education and business experience during at least the past five years of each director,
executive officer and key employee of our company, indicating the person’ s principal occupation during that period, and the
name and principal business of the organization in which such occupation and employment were carried out.

Ho Kang-Wing — Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, President and Director

Since 1993 Ho Kang Wing has served and the managing directar of Guangdong Dongrong Metal Products Co., {td, Foshan,
Guangdong, China based company specializing in the design and production of metal and woed products, Under his direction
Guangdong Dongrong has achieved annual revenues in excess of USD$100,000,000. Mr. Ho has served on TransAKT" s board
of directors since July 2013, Mr. Ho has commiited to help TransAKT to develop and promote our product mix in China and
other Asian countries. He is 56 years of age and resides in Kowloon City, Hong Kong.

Yam Chi-Wah -Chief Financial Officer

Mr, Yam holds a BA (Honors) of Business Finance from Napier University of Edinburgh, and brings more than 20 years of
industry experience in the accounting field, Prior to joining TransAKT Mr. Yam Served as financial controller of Legend
Hardware Lid. from 2006 to 2015, a company specializing in the manufacture, processing, and distribution of office & home
furnishings.

He Jingtian - Director

in 1993 Mr. He Jingtian founded Guangdong Dongrong Metal Products Co., Ltd. He has served as general manager of
Guangdong Dongrong since its inception. He is 64 years of age and resides in Shunde City, Guangdong, China,
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He Jiaxian — Director

Mr. He Jiaxian obtained a Bachelors of Arts degree in International Economics and Trade from South China University of
Technology in 2010, and a Master of Science in Management from Loughborough University (UK} in 2012. in 2013 he joined
Guangdong Dongrong Metal Products Co, Ltd. as a project manager. He is also the founder and director of Guangdong
Chuansuo Agricultural Science and Technology Co. Ltd. Mr. He is 32 years of age and resides in Shunde City, Guangdong,
China.

Tam Yuk-Ching — Director

Since 2004 Ms. Tam Yuk Ching has served as the managing director of Legend Hardware Ltd,, a Hong Kong based manufacturer
of furniture hardware which employs over 2,500 workers at its 100,000 square meters factory in Foshan, China. Ms. Tam brings
more than 20 years of experience in corporate finance and will assist the Company in all financing and capital raising activities
in the future, She is 52 years of age and resides in Hong Kong.

Employment Agreements
We have no formal empioyment agreements with any of our employees, directors or officers,
Family Relationships

Our Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, President and Director, Mr. Ho Kang-Wing and our Director, He lingtian, are brothers.
Qur Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, President and Director, Mr. Ho Kang-Wing and our Director, Ms Tam Yuk-Ching are
married. Our Director, He Jiaxian is the son of Mr. He Jingtian. There are no other family relationships amongst our directors or
officers.

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings
To the best of our knowledge, none of our directors or executive officers has, during the past ten years:

1. been convicted in a criminal proceeding or been subject to a pending criminal praceeding (excluding traffic viclations
and other minor offences);

2. had any bankruptcy petition filed by or against the business or property of the person, or of any partnership, corporation
or business association of which he was a general partner or executive officer, either at the time of the bankruptcy filing
or within two years prior to that time;

3, been subject to any order, judgment, or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, of any court of
competent jurisdiction or federal or state authority, permanently or temporarily enjoining, barring, suspending or
otherwise limiting, his involvement in any type of business, securities, futures, commodities, investment, banking, savings
and loan, or insurance activities, or to be associated with persons engaged in any such activity;

4, been found by a court of competent jurisdictior: in a civil action or by the SEC or the Commodity Futures Trading
Commission to have viotated a federal or state securities or commodities law, and the judgment has not been reversed,
suspended, or vacated;
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5. been the subject of, or a party to, any federal or state judicial or administrative order, judgment, decree, or finding, not
subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated (not including any settlement of a civil proceeding among private
litigants), relating to an alleged violation of any federal or state securities or commadities law or regulation, any law or
regulation respecting financial institutions or insurance companies including, but not limited to, & temporary or
permanent injunction, order of disgorgement or restitution, civil money penalty or temporary or permanent cease-and-
desist order, or removal or prohibition order, or any law or regulation prohibiting mail or wire fraud or fraud in
connection with any business entity; or

6. been the subject of, or a party to, any sanction or order, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, of any self-
regulatory organization (as defined in Section 3(a)}(26) of the Exchange Act (15 U.5.C. 78¢(a)(26)), ary registered entity {as
defined in Section 1(a)(29) of the Commadity Exchange Act (7 US.C. 1(a}(29)). or any equivalent exchange, association,
entity or organization that has disciplinary authority over its members or persons associated with a member

Compliance with Section 16(a} of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires our executive officers and directors and persons who own more
than 10% of our common stock to file with the Securities and Exchange Commission initial statements of beneficial cwnership,
reports of changes in ownership and annual reports concerning their ownership of our common stock and other equity
securities, on Forms 3, 4 and 5 respectively, Executive officers, directors and greater than 10% shareholders are required by the
SEC regulations to furnish us with copies of all Section 16(a) reports that they fite.

Rased solely on our review of the copies of such forms received by us, or written representations from certain reporting
persans, we believe that during fiscal year ended December 31, 2018, all filing requirements applicable to our officers, directors
and greater than 10% percent beneficial owners were complied with,

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a code of ethics as part of a broader “code of conduct” , which addresses ethical issues as well as broader
corporate governance issues. Our code of conduct has been approved by our board of directors and is applicable to all our
directors, officers, employees and consultants, including but not limited to our principle executive officer, our principal financial
officer and principal accounting officer, and any persons performing similar functions. No amendments have been made or
waivers granted in respect of any provision of our code of ethics during the most recently completed fiscal year.

In addition, we practice corporate governance in accordance with rules and regulations in Canada.

Corporate governance relates to the activities of our directors who are elected by and accountable to the sharehelders and
takes into account the role of management who are appointed by the board and who are charged with our ongoing
management. Our board of directars encourages sound corporate governance practices designed to promote our well-being
and on-going development, having aiways as its ultimate objective the best long-term interests of us and the enhancement of
value for all shareholders. The board also believes that sound corporate governance benefits our employees and the
communities in which we operate, The board is of the view that our corporate governance policies and practices, outlined in our
code of ethics, are appropriate and substantially consistent with the guidelines for improved corporate governance in Canada
as adopted by the Toronto Stock Exchange.

24




Board and Committee Meetings

Qur board of directors held no formal meetings during the year ended December 31, 2018, Ail proceedings of the board of
directars were conducted by resolutions consented to in writing by all the directors and filed with the minutes of the
proceedings of the directors. Such resolutions consented to in writing by the directors entitled to vote on that resolution at a
meeting of the directors are, according to the Alberta Corporations Act and our Bylaws, as valid and effective as if they had
been passed at a meeting of the directors duly called and held.

Nomination Process

As of December 31, 2018, we did not affect any material changes to the procedures by which our shareholders may recommend
nominees to our board of directors. Our board of directors does not have a policy with regards to the consideration of any
director candidates recommended by our shareholders. Our board of directors has determined that it is in the best position to
evaluate our company’ s requirements as well as the qualifications of each candidate when the board considers a nominee for
a position on our board of directors. If shareholders wish to recommend candidates directly to our board, they may do so by
sending communications to the president of our company at the address on the cover of this annual report,

Audit Committee

We have no formal audit committee, and thus, we have no audit committee financial expert. Our board is responsible for
reviewing our financial reporting procedures, internal controls, and the performance of our auditors, Our board is also
responsible for reviewing all disclosure with respect to financial matters prior to filing or release. Mr. Yam Chi-wah is our chief
financial officer. Mr. Yam reports to our board in his capacity as chief financial officer.

Audit Committee Financial Expert

Our board of directors has determined that it does not have an audit committee and so have no audit committee member that
qualifies as an "audit committee financial expert” as defined in Item 407(d}{(5)(ii) of Regulation S-K.

Compensation Committee

We have no formal compensation committee. Our board determines the terms of the compensation packages provided to our
senjor executive officers, including salary, bonus and awards under our stock option plan and any other compensation plans
that we may adopt in the future.

Corporate Governance Committee

We have no formal corporate governance committee. Our board meets with and discusses current disclosure issuances with
our management personnef and with our legal counsel, in order to not only report any matters which should be the subject of
either public disciosure or remedial action, but also to assist in establishing reporting and disclosure procedures to ensure that
we are in compliance with our disclosure and compliance obligations under applicable laws, rules and obligations.
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ftem 11, Executive Compensation
The particutars of the compensation paid to the following persons:

{a)  our principal executive officer;

{b)  each of our two most highly compensated executive officers who were serving as executive officers at the end of
the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017; and

] up to two additional individuals for whom disclosure would have been provided under (b) but for the fact that the
individuat was not serving as our executive officer at the end of the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017,

who we will collectively refer to as the named executive officers of our company, are set out in the following summary
compensation table, except that no disclosure is provided for any named executive officer, other than our principal executive
officers, whose total compensation did not exceed $100,000 for the respective fiscal year:

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE
Change in
Pension
Non-Equity] Value and
Incentive | Nonqualified All
Plan Deferred Other
Name Stock Option |{Compensa-]Compensation| Compensa-
and Salary Bonus Awards Awards tion Earnings tion Total
Principal | Year $) (%) ® (%) {$) &) & (%
Position
Ho 2018 89,088 Nii Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 89,088
KangWing®| 2017 89,088 Nil Nit Nil Nl Nil Nl 89,088
Chairman,
Chief
Executive
Officer,
President
and
Director
Yam Chi- 2018 23,040 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 23,040
Wah{2) 2017 | 23,040 Nit Nit Nl Nil Nil Nit 23,040
Chief
Financial
Officer

(1)  Mr. Ho Kang-Wing was appointed as chairman, chief executive officer, president and a director of our company on
March 12, 2015.
(2)  Mr. Yam Chi-Wah was appointed as chief financial officer of our company on March 12, 2015.

There are no atrangements of plans in which we provide pension, retirement or similar benefits for directors or executive
officers. Qur directors and executive officers may receive share options at the discretion of our board of directors in the future,
We do not have any material bonus or profit sharing plans pursuant to which cash or non-cash compensation is or may be paid
to our directors or executive officers, except that share options may be granted at the discretion of our board of directors.
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Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year End

There were no outstanding equity awards at the year ended December 31, 2018.

Option Exercises and Stock Vested

During our fiscal year ended December 31, 2018 there were no options exercised by our named officers.
Compensation of Directors

We do not have any agreements for compensating our directors for their services in their capacity as directors, although such
directors are expected in the future to receive stock options to purchase shares of our common stock as awarded by our board
of directors.

Pension, Retirement or Similar Benefit Plans

There are no arrangements or plans in which we provide pension, retirement or similar benefits for directors or executive
officers. We have no material bonus or profit sharing plans pursuant to which cash or non-cash compensation is or may be paid
to our directors or executive officers, except that stock options may be granted at the discretion of the board of directors or a
committee thereof,

Indebtedness of Directors, Senior Officers, Executive Officers and Other Management

None of our directors or executive officers or any associate or affiliate of our company during the last two fiscal years, is or has
been indebted to our company by way of guarantee, support agreement, letter of credit or other similar agreement or
understanding currently outstanding.

ltem 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The following table sets forth, as of April 1, 2019, certain information with respect to the beneficial ownership of our common
shares by each shareholder known by us to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of our common shares, as well as by each
of our current directors and executive officers as a group. Each person has sole voting and investment power with respect to the
shares of common stock, except as otherwise indicated. Beneficial ownership consists of a direct interest in the shares of
common stock, except as otherwise indicated.

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner Amount and Nature of Percentage
Beneficial Ownership of Class{l)
{Commeon Shares)
Ho Kang-Wing 71,250,000 53.37%
President, Chief Executive Officer, and
Director

23 Sam Mun Tsai Road, The Beverly Hills
Boulevard Du Lac, House 212, Tai Po, NT
Hong Kong

Tam Yuk-Ching 1,400,000 1.05%
Director

23 Sam Mun Tsai Road, The Beverty Hills
Boulevard Du Lac, House 212, Tai Po, NT
Hong Kong
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Name and Address of Beneficial Qwner Amount and Nature of Percentage

Beneficial Ownership of Class(1)
{Common Shares)

He Jingtian 1,400,000 1.05%

Director

11 Jinghong Road Hujing Garden

Daliang Shunde

528300 Foshan Gd

China

He Jiaxian 750,000 (2)

Director

11 Jinghong Road Hujing Garden

Daliang Shunde

528300 Foshan Gd

China

Yam Chi-Wah 125,000 (2

Chief Financial Officer

Flat E 7/F Block 21 Laguna City

Kwun Tong

Kowloon, Hong Keng

Directors and Executive Officers as a 74,925,000 Comimon Shares 56.12%

Group®

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner Amount and Nature of Percentage
Beneficial Ownership of Class(®)

{Common Shares)

Au Yeung Kam-Hung 36,401,666 27.26%

Room 1306 Lai Ming House,

Wah Ming Estate, Fanling,

Hong Kong

Other holders of 5% or more 36,401,666 Common Shares 27.26%

(1}

@

Under Rule 13d-3, a heneficial owner of a security includes any person who, directly or indirectly, through any
contract, arrangement, understanding, relationship, or otherwise has or shares: {i) voting power, which includes the
power to vote, or to direct the voting of shares; and (i} investment power, which includes the power to dispose or
direct the disposition of shares. Certain shares may be deemed to be beneficially owned by more than one person
(if, for example, persons share the power to vote or the power to dispose of the shares). In addition, shares are
deemed to be beneficially owned by a person if the person has the right to acquire the shares (for example, upon
exercise of an option) within 60 days of the date as of which the information is provided. In computing the
percentage ownership of any person, the amount of shares outstanding is deemed fo inciude the amount of
shares beneficially owned by such person (and only such person} by reason of these acquisition rights. As a result,
the percentage of outstanding shares of any person as shown in this table does not necessarily reflect the
person’ s actual ownership or voting power with respect to the number of shares of common stock actually
outstanding on April 1, 2019. As of April 1, 2019 there were 133,506,570 shares of our company’ s common stock
issued and outstanding.

tess than
1%
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Changes in Control

We are unaware of any contract or other arrangement the operation of which may at a subsequent date result in a change in
control of our company.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The Company’ s officers and shareholders have advanced funds to the Company for working capital purposes. The Company
has not entered into any agreement on the repayment terms for these advances, The advance had been paid off during the
year,

Except as disclosed herein, no director, executive officer, shareholder holding at least 5% of shares of our common stock, or any
family member thereof, had any material interest, direct or indirect, in any transaction, or proposed transaction since the year
ended Decerber 31, 2018, in which the amount involved in the transaction exceeded or one percent of the average of our total
assets at the year-end for the last three completed fiscal years.

Director Independence

We currently act with four directors, consisting of Ho Kang-Wing, He Jingtiar, He Jiaxian, and Tam Yuk-Ching. We have not
made any determination as to whether any of our directors are independent directors, as that term is used in Rule 4200(2)(15)
of the Rules of National Association of Securities Dealers,

ltem 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The aggregate fees billed for the most recently completed fiscal year ended December 31, 2018 and for fiscal year ended
December 31, 2017 for professional services rendered by the principal accountant for the audit of our annual financial
statements and review of the financial statements included in our guarterly reports on Form 10-Q and services that are
normally provided by the accountant in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements for these fiscal
periods were as follows:

Year Ended
December 31, December 31,

2018 2017
Audit Fees $21,000 $21,000
Quarter Review Fees $18,000 $15,000
Audit Related Fees $Nil $Nil
Tax Fees T SNl
All Other Fees $Nil $Nit
Total $39,000 $36,000

Our board of directors pre-approves all services provided by our independent auditors. All of the above services and fees were
reviewed and approved by the board of directors either before or after the respective services were rendered.

Our board of directors has considered the nature and amount of fees billed by our independent auditors and believes that the
provision of services for activities unrelated to the audit is compatible with maintaining our independent auditors’
independence.
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Item 15.

PART IV

Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

(a) Financial Statements

(1)  Financial statements for our company are listed in the index under ltem 8 of this document
(2)  All financial statement schedules are omitted because they are not applicable, not material or the required
information is shown in the financial statements or notes thereto.
(b)  Exhibits
Exhibit Description
Number
(3) (i} Articles of incorporation; and (ii) Bylaws
31 Articles of Amalgamation (incornorated by reference from_our Registration Statement on Form 20FR12G filed on
September 16, 2003).
3.2 By-iaws, as amended (incorporated by reference from our Registration Statement on Forrm 20FR12G filed on
Septermber 16, 2003).
33 Articles of Conversion (incorporated by reference from our Registration Statement on Form S$-4 filed on
September 13, 2010)
34 Certificate of Amendment (incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 27, 2012}
(10} Material Contracts
10.1 Form of Loan Agreement and Promissory Note (incorporated by reference from our Registration Statement on
Form 20FR12G filed on September 16, 2003).
10.2 Share Purchase Agreement dated August 24, 2006 with all shareholders of Taiwan Halee International Co. Lid.,
Chena Chun-Chin and TransAKT Jaiwan Limited (incorporated by reference from our to cur Current Reporf on
Form 8-X filed on September 26, 2006)
103 Distribution Aareement with Panasonic {Talwan) dated April, 2010 {incorporated by reference from our Annual and
Transition Report on Form 20-F/A filed on January 231, 2011),
104 Manufacture and Distribution Agreement with Sanyo dated April, 2010 ({incorporated by reference from our
Annual and Transition Report on Form 20-F/A filed on January 21, 2011).
105 Form of Promissory for Shareholder Loan dated April, 2010 (incorperated by reference from our Annual and
Transition Report on Form 20-£/A filed on January 21, 2011,
106 Form of Subscription Agreement for Convertible Debenture_ dated April, 2010 (incorporated by reference from our
Annual and Transition Report on Form 20-F/A filed on January 21, 2011},
107  Asset Purchase and Sale Agreement dated May 3, 2012 with Vegfab Agricuitural Technolegy Co. Lid. {incorporated
by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 8, 2012)
10.8 Parformance Compensation Agreement dated June 35,2006 (incorporated by reference to our Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on August 7, 2012)
10,8  Asset Purchase Amending Agreermen: dated July 26, 2012 with Vegfab Agricultural Technology Co. Lid,

{incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-X filed on August 7, 2012)




Exhihit Description
Number
1010  Share Purchase and Sale Agreement dated January 4, 2013 with Pan Yen Chu (incorporated by reference from our
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 14, 2013)
1011  Share transfer aqreement dated June 30, 2015 with James Wu and share transfer agreement between TransAKT
Taiwan Ltd. And Peng Yuchi {incorporated by reference from our current report on form 8-K filed on July 6, 2015)
1017  Forr of Convertible Promissory Note and Securities Purchase Agreement (incorporated by reference from our
current report on Form &-K filed on July 19, 2016)
(14) Code of Ethics
141 Code of Fthics (April, 2010) (incorporated by reference from our Annual and Transition Report on Form 20-F/A
fited on January 21, 2011),
(21) Subsidiaries of the Registrant
211 TransAKT (BVI) Ltd {Wholly owned), a BVi company
712 TransAKT BIO Agritech Ltd. (Wholly owned), a Hong Kong company
{31)  Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14{(a) Certifications
31.1*  Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Qxley Act of 2002 of the Principal Executive Officer
31.2%  Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 of the Principal Financial Officer and
Principal Accounting Officer
(32) Section 1350 Certifications
321*  Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxtey Act of 2002 of the Principal Executive Qfficer
32.2* | Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 of the Principal Financial Officer and
Principal Accounting Officer
101**  Interactive Data File
101.INS  XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
10LCAL  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calcuiation Linkbase Document
101,DEF  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
10LLAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
101L.PRE  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentaijon Linkbase Document

* Filed herewith,

*  Furnished herewith, Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation 5-T, the Interactive Data Files on Exhibit 101 hereto are deemed
not filed or part of any registration statement or prospectus for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of
1933, are deemed not filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, and otherwise are not
subject to iability under those sections.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereto duly authorized.

TransAKT Ltd.
(Registrant}

Dated:; April %, 2019 /s/ Ho Kang-Wing

Ho Kang-Wing
President, Chief Executive Officer, and Director
(Principal Executive Officer}

Dated: April 1, 2019 /s/ Yam Chi-Wah

Yam Chi-Wah

Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer and Principal
Accounting Cfficer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Fxchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Dated: April 1, 2019 /s/ Ho Kang-Wing
Ho Kang-Wing
President, Chief Executive Officer, and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

Dated: April 1, 2019 /s/ He Jingtian

He Jingtian
Director

Dated: Aprit 1, 2019 /s/ He Jiaxian

He Jiaxian
Director

Dated: April 1,2019 /s/ Tam Yuk-Ching

Tam Yuk-Ching
Director
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